
 

 

 

Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA 
Prif Weithredwr, 
Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP 
 

 
 
 
 
MONDAY 13TH JUNE 2016 
 
 

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 

 

 

I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WHICH WILL BE HELD IN 

THE CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, CARMARTHEN AT 2:00PM ON 

MONDAY 20
TH

 JUNE 2016, FOR THE TRANSACTION OF THE 

BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED AGENDA.  
 
 
 

Mark James 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

PLEASE RECYCLE 
 
 

Democratic Officer: Kevin J. Thomas  

Telephone (Direct Line): 01267 224027  

Fax: 01267 224911 

E-Mail: kjthomas@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  

Ref: AD016-001 

 
 

Document Pack



 

 
 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

13 MEMBERS 
 

 
 

PLAID CYMRU GROUP – 5 MEMBERS 
   
1. Councillor J.M. Charles 
2. Councillor J.K. Howell 
3. Councillor J. Owen 
4. Councillor G.B. Thomas 
5. Councillor J. Thomas 
   
   
INDEPENDENT GROUP – 4 MEMBERS 
   
1. Councillor W.R.A. Davies 
2. Councillor H.I. Jones 
3. Councillor H.B. Shepardson  
4. Councillor E.G. Thomas (Vice-Chair) 
   
   
LABOUR  GROUP – 4 MEMBERS 
   
1. Councillor D.M. Cundy (Chair) 
2. Councillor S.L. Davies 
3. Councillor T. Devichand 
4. Councillor S. Matthews 
   

 

 



 

 

AGENDA   
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS  
 

 

3. DECLARATION OF PROHIBITED PARTY WHIPS  
 

 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS (NONE RECEIVED)  
 

 

5. NATIONAL LICENSING OF LANDLORDS AND 
AGENTS  
 

5 - 12 

6. DEVELOPMENT OF THE NEW CARMARTHENSHIRE 
ARCHIVE SERVICE (CAS)  
 

13 - 20 

7. DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT (2015/16) AND 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN (2016/17)  
 

21 - 104 

8. COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD 
WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2016/17  
 

105 - 118 

9. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF 
THE MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 
24TH MARCH 2016  
 

119 - 124 

10. TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING 
OF THE COMMUNITY SCRUTINY AND PLANNING 
COMMITTEES, HELD ON THE 24TH MARCH 2016  

125 - 128 

 
 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

20
th

 JUNE 2016 
 
 

National Licensing of Landlords and Agents 
 

 

To consider and comment on the following issues: 
 

• Progress made in relation to national licensing of landlords and agents. 
  

Reasons:  
 

• To provide an update on progress relating to national licensing of landlords and 
agents. 
 

• The private rented sector is recognised as an extremely important source of 
accommodation. However it is also recognised that there are sometimes issues 
regarding standards of management. 

 

• Carmarthenshire have been proactive for a number of years in terms of both regulating 
standards through local licensing schemes and engaging landlords through its 
landlord’s forum. As a result officers from the Department have been directly involved 
developing this new scheme with Welsh Government and other partners. 

 

• The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 makes it a requirement that all landlords and agents 
who manage or let private sector homes in Wales obtain a licence. National licensing 
of landlords in Wales follows a similar scheme in Scotland and has been driven by 
concerns of local authorities and others relating to standards and conditions in the 
sector as a whole.  

 

• Welsh Government designated Cardiff Council as the Licensing Authority for the whole 
of Wales in 2015, however, they will require the support of each local authority to 
deliver and enforce the scheme effectively. 

 

• It is therefore important that members of the Community Scrutiny Committee are 
informed of progress and the approach employed. 

 

 
To be referred to the Executive Board for decision: NO 
 

 
  

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



 

 
 

 
Executive Board Member Portfolio Holder: Cllr. Linda Evans (Housing) 
 

 
 
Directorate: 
Communities  
  
Name of Head of Service: 
Robin Staines  
 
 
Report Author:  
Jonathan Willis  
 

 
Designations: 
 
 
 
Head of Housing & Public 
Protection  
 
 
Housing Services Manager 
(Housing Options & Advice) 

 
Tel Nos. / E-Mail Addresses: 
 
 
 
01267 228960  
rstaines@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  
 
 
01554 899232 
jnwillis@carmarthenshire.gov.uk   
 

  

Page 6



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

20
th

 JUNE 2016 
 
 

National Licensing of Landlords and Agents 
  

 

 
There are approximately 12,000 private rented homes in Carmarthenshire according to 
both census data and Welsh Government statistics. It is estimated that these homes are 
owned by 3,000 landlords. 
 
The Council have recognised the role of private sector landlords as a source of good 
quality affordable homes for a number of years. We have an established landlord’s 
forum and manage over 130 properties for landlords via our Social Lettings Agency. 
Private sector landlords also help us meet our statutory homeless duties by providing 
temporary and permanent accommodation to homeless individuals and families.  
 
It is however recognised that there are sometimes issues with private rented property in 
terms of their condition and management. To address this Welsh Government have 
introduced national licensing of landlords and agents. 
 
The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 requires landlords and agents to register and obtain a 
licence if they own or manage private rented properties. There are two parts to obtaining 
a license. A landlord or agent is firstly required to register and then complete an 
approved training course.  
 
The costs to register and licence are as follows: 
 

• Landlord registration (not per property) - £33.50. 

• Landlord licence- £144.00. 

• Agents licence will depend on the size of their portfolio. 
 
From 23rd November 2015 the new registration and licensing provisions came into 
force. However, landlords and agents have been given a grace period of up 23rd of 
November 2016 to comply. The registration and licensing process is administered by 
Cardiff City Council under the name of Rent Smart Wales (RSW). RSW will receive all 
licence fees and will be responsible for administering the licence and the scheme as a 
whole. 
 
After the grace period it will become an offence for a landlord to rent out a property 
without being registered and licensed. It will also be an offence for agents to manage 
rented properties on behalf of landlords if they haven’t obtained a licence.  
 

 
  

Page 7



 

 
 

 
A Memorandum of Understanding between RSW / Cardiff Council and the other Welsh 
authorities’ sets out the roles and responsibilities of the Licensing Authority and 
individual Councils. The role of Councils will be: 
 

• To review the private rented stock within their areas on a regular basis.  

• To provide information to RSW where they take on prosecutions for non-compliance. 

• To serve fixed penalty notices on landlords and agents. 

• To undertake local promotion. 
 
After the 23rd of November we will actively pursue landlords and agents that have failed 
to register or licence. Where we identify landlords and agents that aren’t registered or 
licensed, we will issue fixed penalty notices as appropriate. Persistent non-compliance 
will be dealt with by RSW. We will work with our council tax/ housing benefit 
departments and RSW to identify these landlords by cross referencing details that we 
have and a national database of landlords.  
 
Where fixed penalty notices are served we will receive that income. Each fixed penalty 
notice will carry a fee of £150 and in some cases £200. Likewise, where the Council 
assists RSW with their functions we will be able to recharge them for the time invested.  
 
To become licensed, all landlords and agents will have to obtain a licence to operate 
their business. A requirement of the licence is that a landlord or agent is able to 
demonstrate that they are competent to manage their properties effectively. Therefore, 
to demonstrate that they are a ‘fit and proper’ person/company they must attend and 
complete an approved training course where the full RSW syllabus is delivered. Without 
this they cannot obtain a licence.  
 
We have taken this opportunity to develop our own syllabus and are delivering a training 
program for landlords ourselves. Carmarthenshire is the first and only Council to date 
that have been approved by RSW to deliver this program. Landlords can choose to 
attend another approved course if they so wish. 
 
Carmarthenshire have initially planned 12 training programs for 15 people at a time, at a 
cost of £85 per delegate. We will use Council owned venues and they will be delivered 
by trained staff within our Housing Options Team. Landlords are able to make 
applications online via the Councils website. Further training programs will be arranged 
as demand increases. In addition, if there is capacity we can support other neighbouring 
local authorities by running training programs in their areas. 
 
RSW launched a publicity campaign last year, however, the amount of media attention 
and communication to landlords from them has since dropped off. Local authorities have 
been issued with funding to undertake publicity in their own areas. We have used 
funding to develop our own marketing campaign.  
 

 
  

Page 8



 

 
 

 
This has involved three landlord road shows in Ammanford, Carmarthen and Llanelli 
where speakers will deliver presentations to landlords on what they need to do to obtain 
a licence. In addition we will use it as an opportunity to engage the sector in relation to 
our plans to expand our Social Lettings Agency. 
 
Nationally approximately 8,000 landlords have registered and 1,265 of those relate to 
Carmarthenshire. We will monitor and report on these figures as our publicity and 
enforcement program progresses. 
 
Recommendation: Community Scrutiny notes the approach and progress made. 
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

 
NO 
 

 
  

Page 9



 

 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.  
  
Signed:    Robin Staines  

 
Head of Housing & Public Protection  

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
YES 
 

 
YES 

 
YES  

 
NONE 

 
YES 

 
YES 

 
NONE 

 

 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
 
There are no crime or disorder issues. However, there are policy and equality matters 
which are as follows: 
 

• All communication to landlords has been translated as well as the training course. All 
literature has been translated and in line with the Welsh language policy. 
 

• The course venues have all been assessed and are suitable for persons with 
disabilities. 

 

 
2. Legal 
 
Legal services have been consulted in relation to the terms and conditions of the 
Memorandum of Understanding between the Council and RSW. 
 

 
3. Finance 
 

• The Council have received £13K in 2015/16 funding from Welsh Government to 
mitigate the initial impact of the scheme. This funding was primarily used to develop 
a marketing and publicity campaign. 
 

• For 2016/17 the council has been awarded £29K to deliver activities relating to RSW. 
This will extend to £35K in future years. This funding will be used to recruit an 
additional staff member to assist in the delivery of the scheme locally. 

 

• The income generated from the training courses, the fixed penalty notices and the 
recharging for additional activities will ensure that current income targets are 
maintained. 

 

 
  

Page 10



 

 
 

 
5. Risk Management Issues 
 
Officers delivering the training program have adequate professional indemnity through 
the Councils insurance provider.   
 

 
6. Staffing Implications 
 
The new duties and responsibilities will require the employment of an additional staff 
member. This post will be funded by grant funding provided by Welsh Government. 
 

 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
  
Signed:    Robin Staines  

 
Head of Housing & Public Protection  

 
1. Local Member(s) – Members of the Community Scrutiny Committee will be 
consulted as part of this report. 
 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
 
3. Relevant Partners – Welsh Government undertook a national consultation exercise 
involving landlord and agents and other key stakeholders. 
 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

 
Housing (Wales) 
Act 2014  

 
Cymraeg  
http://gov.wales/topics/housing-and-regeneration/legislation/housing-
act/?skip=1&lang=cy 
 
English  
http://gov.wales/topics/housing-and-regeneration/legislation/housing-act/?lang=en 
  

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
20

th
 JUNE 2016 

 
 

Development of the new Carmarthenshire 
Archive Service (CAS) 

 

 

To consider and comment on the following issues: 
 
That the Committee:  
 

• Notes the update.   
 

• Notes the current position, plans for the re-vamped Archive Service, and proposals for 
a new base at the rear of Carmarthen Library. 
 

Reasons:  
 

• To outline plans for a new Archive Service and its collection as part of a £2m 
investment into the service. 
 

• To update the Committee on the status of the collection. 
 

• To update the Committee on the latest position (as reported to Executive Board on the 
25th April 2016 and 30th November 2015), and to outline the exciting new plans for the 
Service. 

 

• To assist officers in progressing with the delivery of these plans  
 

 
To be referred to the Executive Board for decision: NO 
 

 

 
Executive Board Member Portfolio Holder:  
Cllr. Meryl Gravell (Regeneration & Leisure)  
 

 
  

Agenda Item 6

Page 13



 

 
 
 
Directorate: 
Communities  
  
Name of Head of Service: 
Ian Jones  
 
 
Report Author:  
Jane Davies  
 

 
Designations: 
 
 
 
Head of Leisure  
 
 
 
Senior Cultural Services 
Manager 
 

 
Tel Nos. / E-Mail Addresses: 
 
 
 
01267 228309 
ijones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  
 
 
01554 742180 
janedavies@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  

  

Page 14



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
20

th
 JUNE 2016 

 
 

Development of the new Carmarthenshire 
Archive Service (CAS) 

  

 

 
Summary of purpose of report 
  
1. To outline plans for a new Archive Service and its collection as part of a £2m 

investment into the service 
 

• The authority has identified £2m of capital investment to provide a new Archive 
facility and service for the County.  

 

• The current CAS base at Parc Myrddin has been identified as inappropriate to 
house an archive collection. 

 

• Members and user groups have indicated a preference to replace the Archive as 
close as possible to its current Parc Myrddin location  

 

• Property Services and Corporate Property have been involved in assessing 
potential site options and existing buildings, and agree with the view of Welsh 
Government’s Museums, Archives, and Libraries Division (MALD) that a new 
build facility, for the strong-rooms in particular, was by far the best option due to 
the building (environmental) control systems that are required for an accredited 
Archive.  

 

• Following an extensive desktop exercise where a number of potential sites were 
identified and assessed as possible locations for the CAS, shortlisted sites were 
assessed by internal officers with advice and input on the criteria from MALD and 
then with recommendations made to the Executive Board on the 25th April.  

 

• The Executive Board endorsed the firm recommendation that an extension onto 
the rear of Carmarthen Library was the most obvious location for the new CAS.  

 

• Officers are now progressing with detailed plans and costings for the site. Initial 
investigations indicate that the site has sufficient capacity to accommodate a new 
combined Archive & Library facility.  

 

 
  

Page 15



 

 
 

 

• The site at the rear of the Library allows for shared front of house services, along 
with multi-purpose rooms, and a new strong-room built at the rear. The sharing of 
facilities allows for potential savings on running costs across service areas and 
provides a joined up, high footfall, and easily accessible location for the public to 
use. The location also adds to the King Street ‘Cultural Quarter’ ethos and 
provides additional footfall to traders at this end of the town. 

 

• Opportunities are also being explored with the Education Department with 
regards the possibility of combining community education functions into the new 
facility, as well as exploring the potential to move the customer service centre 
from the ground floor of 3 Spilman Street, which would in turn free up office 
accommodation and parking there.  

 

• The options in development include one with all services accommodated (i.e. 
library, archives, community education centre, customer service centre, 
automated cash desks and Un Sir Gar and an alternative accommodating library 
and archives alone, depending on cost and benefits).  

 

• Cost and schedule information is in development and should be confirmed in the 
next few weeks. The baseline requirement is to co-locate the new Archive Service 
within the £2m budget. 

 

• The service is also exploring potential joint management solutions for the future, 
in order to maximise the potential of the fantastic Carmarthenshire collection. 
Joint management solutions would increase access to expertise and potentially 
reduce ongoing revenue costs. It may be that some specialist functions such as 
conservation, digitisation and outreach work could be co-ordinated regionally, 
with the public facing functions operated locally.  

 

• The aim is to ensure that as many people as possible can access the collection, 
in person, on-line or by way of educational / outreach work, promoting the rich 
cultural history of the County.  

 
 
 
2. To update on the status of the collection 
 

• Previous updates have been presented to the Executive Board confirming that 
resources have been secured to support the uplift and cleaning of the collection, 
and a tender awarded to Harwell Document Restoration Services, based in 
Oxfordshire.  
 

• The uplift of the whole collection was completed prior to Christmas 2015, and the 
documents are currently being cleaned and indexed prior to return to temporary 
storage at Glamorgan Archives and the Richard Burton Archive in Swansea 
University, both of which meet the appropriate standard for archive 
accommodation and will afford public access to the collection.  

  

 

Page 16



 

 
 

 

• Work is underway on a database of those items to describe to users the material 
that is available and these lists are being uploaded to the CAS website. 
 

• Both The National Archives (TNA) and the Welsh Government’s Museums, 
Archives, and Libraries Division (MALD) are happy with the progress made to 
date 
 

• Communication is ongoing via the press office and local groups such as the 
Friends of the Archives to keep depositors, users and the general public updated 
on progress. 

 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

 
NO 
 

 
  

Page 17



 

 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.  
  
Signed:    Ian Jones  

 
Head of Leisure   

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE 
 

 
YES 

 
YES 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE AT 
PRESENT 
 

 
YES 

 

 
2. Legal   
  
The Local Government (Wales) Act 1994 (s.60) requires all unitary authorities in Wales 
to submit schemes for their proposed delivery of archive services, setting out ‘their 
arrangements for the proper care, preservation and management of their records’, 
including details of any shared arrangements. All schemes must be kept under review 
and modified if considered appropriate. 
  

 
3. Finance   
 
Finance has been secured for the uplift, cleaning and immediate term storage of the 
collection.  
 
The existing resource that constitutes the annual budget for CAS will be required to 
deliver whichever future delivery model members wish to support. 
 
£2m has been identified in the authority’s capital programme to secure and develop a 
new base for CAS.  
 

 
7. Physical Assets   
 
Corporate Property has worked closely with Leisure to review all options for future 
accommodation for the Archive Service.  Use of Carmarthen Library would align with 
current Asset Management Plan principle of co-locating services and not extending the 
number of properties used by the Authority. 
 
Development of new facilities at Carmarthen Library would also provide the opportunity 
to review use of other parts of the building and potentially open up wider use of the 
building for a range of public-facing services. 
 

 
  

Page 18



 

 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
  
Signed:    Ian Jones  

 
Head of Leisure   

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A as provision is county-wide.  
 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
 
3. Relevant Partners – MALD and TNA have been kept fully informed and are working 
closely with officers to manage the existing position. Both organisation acknowledge 
and endorse the current position and work that is earmarked.  
 
Senior Officers from the department continue to meet and correspond with the Friends 
of the Archives group and the Carmarthen Heritage Group to discuss the current 
position and to exchange views and ideas. The meetings have been very positive, and 
ongoing communication will be in place with both chairs. Both groups held the very firm 
view that this was a critical service to Carmarthenshire, and that the authority had to 
prioritise and resource current and longer term support for CAS. Both groups confirmed 
their view that they would want to see the Archives remain in Carmarthen Town and 
have written in formally to support this view.  
 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection 

 
Carmarthen Archive 
Services – Site options 
appraisal (Executive Board, 
25th April 2016)   
 

 
Cymraeg  
http://democratiaeth.sirgar.llyw.cymru/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=131&MI
d=348&Ver=4  
 
English  
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=
131&MId=348&Ver=4 
 

 
Archives for the 21st Century 
in action: Refreshed 2012 – 
2015 
 

 
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/documents/archives/archives21centur
yrefreshed-final.pdf 
 

 
 
 
   

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
20

th
 JUNE 2016 

 
 

Draft Annual Report (2015/16) and 
Improvement Plan (2016/17) 

 

• The entire - 1st Year’s progress report on the Corporate Strategy 2015-20 (including our 
Summary Annual Report (2015/16) and Improvement Plan (2016/17))  
 

• Relevant extracts for this Scrutiny Committee of the: Full Annual Report (2015/16) and 
Improvement Plan (2016/17) – (ARIP)  

 

 

To consider and comment on the following issues: 
 

• That the Committee considers and comments on the Council’s draft Annual Report 
2015/16 and Improvement Plan 2016/17.  

 

Reasons:  
 

1. Under the Local Government (Wales) Measure we must: 
 

• Publish an Improvement Plan as soon as it is reasonably practicable after the 
start of the financial year i.e. April 1st (The Auditor General interprets this as by 
the end of June)    and 

• Publish an Annual Report on past performance by the end of October each year. 
 

2. We publish a combined Annual Report and Improvement Plan allowing us to evaluate 
previous year’s results and agree future outcomes. 
 

3. The document is still being finalised as End of Year data becomes available. 
 

 

 
To be referred to the Executive Board / Council for decision: YES 
 

 
  

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



 

 
 

 
Executive Board Member Portfolio Holders:  
 

• Cllr. Linda Evans (Housing)  

• Cllr. Meryl Gravell (Regeneration & Leisure)   

• Cllr. Mair Stephens (Human Resources, Efficiencies & Collaboration) 
 

 
 
Directorates: 
Communities / Environment / 
Chief Executive’s  
 
Names of Heads of Service:  
Wendy Walters  
 
 
Ian Jones 
 
 
Llinos Quelch  
 
 
Robin Staines   
 
 
Report Author:  
Lyn Walters  

 
Designations: 
 
 
 
 
Assistant Chief Executive 
(Regeneration & Policy)  
 
Head of Leisure 
 
 
Head of Planning  
 
 
Head of Housing & Public 
Protection 
 
 
Senior Business Support 
Manager 
 

 
Tel Nos./ E-Mail Addresses: 
 
 
 
 
01267 224112 
wswalters@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
 
01267 228309 
ijones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
 
01267 228918 
lquelch@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  
 
01267 228960 
rstaines@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
 
 
01267 228768 
dlwalters@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
  

Page 22



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
20

th
 JUNE 2016 

 
 

Draft Annual Report (2015/16) and 
Improvement Plan (2016/17) 

 

• 1st Year’s progress report on the Corporate Strategy 2015-20 (including our 
Summary Annual Report (2015/16) and Improvement Plan (2016/17)). This Scrutiny 
should focus on Pages 8, 9, 16 and 17 only.  
 

• Full Annual Report (2015/16) and Improvement Plan (2016/17) – (ARIP)  
 
Extracts relevant to the Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee: 
- Introduction 
- Ensuring each child has the best start in life 
- Preventing ill health and encourage healthy and active living 
- Improving housing conditions and reducing homelessness 
- Supporting opportunities for the building of economically viable and sustainable 

communities 
- Carmarthenshire has a stronger and more prosperous economy 
- Appendices 

 

 

Page 23



 

 
1st Year’s progress report on the Corporate Strategy 2015-20 (Including our 
Summary Annual Report (2015/16) and Improvement Plan (2016/17))  
 

• When we published the Corporate Strategy 2015-20 we promised to conduct an 
annual progress report and we set out a set 24 Outcome measures to judge our 
progress against 

• By law we also have to publish a summary and full ARIP 

• It makes sense to combine the Corporate Strategy progress and summary ARIP into 
one document to avoid duplication and align plans and reports 

• In the recent WAO Annual Improvement Report they found the combination of a 
short summary and a full version – gave all the information needed. 

 
Full Annual Report (2015/16) and Improvement Plan (2016/17) – (ARIP) 
 

• By law we have to publish an Annual Report and an Improvement Plan – we 
combine the both in a single document in Carmarthenshire and this is seen as good 
practice by our regulators. 
 
 
 

• On 20th April, we consulted with elected members on the Key Improvement 
Objective Priorities that are incorporated into this document 

• WAO Corporate Assessment Proposals for Improvement are incorporated into the 
document. 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

 
 
 
 
 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
We confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report. 
 
Signed:    Wendy Walters  

 
Ian Jones 
 
Llinos Quelch  
 
Robin Staines  
 

Assistant Chief Executive (Regeneration & Policy)  
 
 Head of Leisure 
 
Head of Planning  
 
Head of Housing & Public Protection  

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications  

Physical 
Assets  

 
YES  
 

 
YES  

 
YES  

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

Page 24



 

 

 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities – The Annual Report and Improvement 
Plan is aligned to our Integrated Community Strategy (ICS) Outcomes and Goals. The 
document will help inform our ICS Annual Report. 
 

 
2. Legal – Our combination of Annual Reporting and Improvement Planning into a single 
document meets the Local Government Measure requirements and has satisfied our 
regulators. Other Councils in Wales have adopted this combined approach. 
 

 
3. Finance – See the Making Better use of Resources theme 
 

 
  

Page 25



 

 
 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
We confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
 
Signed:   Wendy Walters  

 
Ian Jones 
 
Llinos Quelch  
 
Robin Staines  
 

Assistant Chief Executive (Regeneration & Policy)  
 
 Head of Leisure 
 
Head of Planning  
 
Head of Housing & Public Protection  

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW: 
  
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection 

 
The Local Government Measure 
(Wales) 2009 
 

 
Welsh Government\Final part 1 guidance 

 
Corporate Strategy 2015 -2020 
 

 
Corporate Strategy 2015-2020 

 

Page 26



 

CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

I
st
 year progress report on the 

Corporate Strategy for 2015/16 
 

Including our Summary Annual Report 2015/16 

 and Improvement Plan for 2016/17 

 

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru 

www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Page 27



 Page 2 

 

Contents …. 

 
 Page 

Introduction 2 

Progress at a Glance 3 

Making Better Use of Resources 4 

Building a Better Council 6 

People in Carmarthenshire are Healthier 8 

People in Carmarthenshire fulfill their learning potential 10 

People who live, work and visit Carmarthenshire are safe and feel safer 12 

Carmarthenshire’s communities and environment are sustainable 14 

Carmarthenshire has a stronger and more prosperous economy 16 

You Said, We Did.. 18 

 
 
 
 
Introduction 
 
When we signed up with our partners to the Integrated Community Strategy for 

Carmarthenshire, the Council aligned its internal plans to maximize its contribution to the 

agreement. The vision is for a Carmarthenshire that enables people to live healthy and fulfilled 

lives by working together to build strong, bilingual and sustainable communities. 

In September 2015, we renewed our Corporate Strategy which set out the Council’s strategic 

priorities and aspirations in support of the vision for Carmarthenshire. This Strategy identified 

key areas of focus and set out the key outcome measures by which the Council would judge 

its success. This document provides an annual report on progress made. 

For the last five years the Council has published a combined Annual Report and Improvement 

Plan (ARIP), that details our progress against all of the outcomes and goals set out in the 

Integrated Community Strategy. The full ARIP is a detailed and lengthy document, however 

this document provides a summary. 
 
 
 

 
Carmarthenshire County Council’s Corporate Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 
Annual Report 2015/16 and Improvement Plan 2016/17 

 
  

Page 28



 Page 3 

 

Progress at a Glance 
 

When we published the Corporate Strategy 2015-20 we set out the following outcome measures 
to judge our progress:- 
 

Outcome Outcome Measures Progress 

Making 

Better Use of 

Resources 

Improved public satisfaction levels with the services provided by the Council ü 

Reduction in organisational ‘running costs’ ü 

Increased on line activity to address public queries and transactions ü 

Building a 

Better 

Council 

Increasing public communication, consultation and engagement ü 

Improved staff satisfaction levels  ü 

Reduced staff sickness absence levels û 

Healthier 

Reduction in referrals to adult and children’s social services   

(Feedback from E&CS DMT that this is not the best measure of Safeguarding - may require an 

alternative for the future) 

ü 

Increased availability of rented and affordable homes ü 

Increased use of leisure facilities û 

Learning  

Improved educational attainment ü 

Improved school attendance rates ü 

Reduced number of young people Not in Education, Employment or Training 
Year 11 û 

Year 13 ü 

Improved condition of schools ü 

Safe 

Appropriate support provided to children, young people and families as required ü 

Reduction in road casualties 
Awaiting 

results 

Reduction in total recorded crime û 

Reduction in anti-social behaviour ü 

Environment  

Increased rates of recycling ü 

Improved digital access ü 

Improved transport links ü 

Increased use of renewable energy ü 

Economy 

Increased employment ü 

Reduction in working age population in receipt of out of work benefits ü 

Increased economic activity and productivity ü 
Page 29



 Page 4 

 

Outcome A: Making Better Use of Resources…
 

The Council is facing a period of significant and continued budget cuts and it is more important than ever 
to ensure that we are making the best use of resources. We will ensure that the organisation is working as 
efficiently as possible in order to protect and maintain front line services where possible. However, it may 
not be possible for us to continue doing some of the things we have done in the past and we will work with 
our communities and stakeholders to find new ways of addressing need where appropriate. 
 

 

  

 

IT Technology has arrived at school kitchens…… 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As part of the Transform, Innovate and Change (TIC) programme, electronic submissions make 
the ordering of food and kitchen supplies, timesheets, e-banking, staff newsletters, e-learning 
courses & on-line payments for school meals easier and accurate for kitchen staff, with significant 
time and efficiency savings and with better utilisation of resources for value added work. 

T Technology has arrived at school kitchens……

art of the Transform Innovate and Change (TIC) programme electronic submissions make 

Page 30



 Page 5 

 

Deliver value for money in providing council services and directing our resources to the 
top priority front-line services on which many local people depend - taking account of 

central government budget cuts and their impact 

DeDe

 

60% of our national measure results are in the top half of results for all 
Councils in Wales. 

59% of our National measures improved last year  

58% of citizens agree we provide high quality services  

 

We have continued to reduce the organisational 'running costs' 

2013/14    £16.7M 

2014/15     £11.9M 

2015/16     £12.6M 

Progress during 2015/16 
 

We set ourselves a Key Improvement Priority for 2015/16 to ‘deliver value for money in providing 
council services and directing our resources to the top priority front line services on which many local 
people depend’. In its March 2016, Annual Improvement Report on the Council, the Wales Audit Office 
found: 
 

‘Despite increasing pressure on budgets, performance is continuing to improve across the 
Council’s priority areas and public satisfaction with Council Services is growing’......frontline 
services have been protected, as a result of budget decisions and more efficient ways of 
working’             
 

v We have a programme of office rationalisation facilitated by adapting the way we use the 
buildings to suit the needs of those providing services and to engender  a new more agile 
way of working.  This has further reduced the number of buildings and costs of 
accommodation required to deliver the Councils services.  

 

Expected Outcomes (as identified in Corporate Strategy)  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

i-Local aims to keep residents better informed of changes to refuse 
collection arrangements, bad weather and other emergencies, news 

updates and information on events .  
 

882,669    
visitors to our website       

 

 

13.5% 
 

increase of on-line payments 

 
 
 

165,730  

visitors to iLocal 

 

The Key Improvement Objective Priority for 2016/17  
 

 

 

More i - Annual Report 2015/16 and Improvement Plan 2016/17  Page 31



 Page 6 

 

Outcome B: Building a Better Council…
 
The Council has always worked towards building a better Carmarthenshire and has a proven track record 
of delivery. However, the way that public services are provided is changing and as a Council we need to 
respond and adapt to these changes in order to ensure we can support the needs of our residents in the 
future. 
 

 
 
We have made further improvements in Building a Better Council and this progress has been 
independently verified by the Auditor General for Wales in his Corporate Assessment of January 2016. 
 
 
“Carmarthenshire County Council is demonstrating ambition in its vision, with 
collective leadership and more robust and transparent governance, it is delivering 
improved outcomes for its citizens....” 

                                                              

  

Shwmae! 
More than 100 people started their conversation with  

‘Shwmae’ during their visit to Llanelli Market 
 

 

As part of the national Shwmae Sumae Day on October 15, shoppers were urged to start their 
conversation with ‘Shwmae’ to be entered into a free raffle to win a grand hamper donated by 
traders. traders.

Llanelli Market traders Wendy Lewis & 
Liz Thomas of AJ Meats supporting 

Shwmae Sumae Day 

 

Page 32



 Page 7 

 

We will continue to improve governance, decision making, openness & 

transparency and keep under review by the Constitutional Review Working Group 

Progress during 2015/16 
 

v We continue to promote local democracy and transparency with increased use of social 
media.  For example the budget Consultation with the citizen’s of Carmarthenshire involved 
an online survey, road show events and the use of ‘question of the week’ through social 
media. 
 

v It is the duty of the Council to facilitate and increase the use of the Welsh language. This is 
a new opportunity for us to look at the Language in our workplace and in the services that 
we provide.  

 

v We received 1000+ responses to our survey on rural poverty and this was brought together 
in a report for Grwp Cefn Gwlad. In response the LEADER programme is supporting pilot 
projects that aim to increase digital exploitation, access to information and advice services, 
as well as affordable childcare. 

 

Expected Outcomes (as identified in Corporate Strategy) 
 

Increased public communication, 

consultation and engagement 

4000+  
respondents to consultation on rural poverty, 
affordable homes, budget, tourism. Citizens 

Panel and 50+ Forum members 
 

i-Local has an area dedicated to 

Consultation with the heading “We 

want to hear what you have to say 

on any and all matters of interest.” 

Staff Sickness Up 
 

Unfortunately our staff sickness 

absence levels have increased to 

10.1 days  

from 9.6 days the previous year. 

 

Improved Staff Satisfaction Levels 
 

The Council has been an Investor in People since 2009, and 
this financial year the Council has been reviewed and its 

accreditation maintained.  
During the review, staff interviews showed higher levels of satisfaction than the previously. 

 

 
We were the first local authority to achieve the Welsh Government’s Platinum health standard; we 

have now held the accreditation for 6 years. 

 
 

 
The Key Improvement Objective Priority for 2016/17 
 

 

More i - Annual Report 2015/16 and Improvement Plan 2016/17 

  
Page 33



 Page 8 

 

Outcome C: People in Carmarthenshire are healthier …
 
Our way of life is changing. People are living longer with a higher quality of life but our care needs are 
becoming more complex. The challenge now facing us is to prevent ill-health in the first place. 
 
 
 

A Helping Hand 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Yvonne lives with her husband who has chronic heart failure and hearing problems and she is 
her husband’s main carer. Yvonne fell on a shop escalator and was taken to A & E but after 
assessment was discharged into the care of a Rapid Response Team by the Out of Hours 
Domiciliary Care Manager, thus avoiding hospital admission.  

 

Yvonne wanted to regain her independence as soon as possible. The Rapid Response Team 
provided the necessary support until Re enablement Team support was arranged. Within three 
to four weeks visits were decreased and then stopped as they were no longer necessary.  
 

 
 

 

  

Page 34



 Page 9 

 

Promoting Independence and Well Being for Older People 

Increasing the availability of rented and affordable homes to support the 

needs of local people by implementing our affordable homes delivery plan 

Progress during 2015/16 
 

v The Council has worked in close partnership with the Health Board to address health 
inequality issues such as obesity, diabetes, smoking and alcohol use, dementia and other 
chronic conditions. The Council also works closely with the 3rd Sector to develop more 
resilient communities, thereby improving the health and well-being of the residents of these 
communities. 

 

v The expanded Flying Start programme enabled 1,832 children to benefit from this early 
intervention service; Team Around the Family (TAF) training and support programme is 
being implemented across Carmarthenshire.  All Families First (FF) commissioned projects 
are using the Joint Assessment Families Framework (JAFF) to measure whether 
involvement has been effective.  The resource panel is helping ensure preventative 
services are being fully utilised.  

 

v There is also a strong relationship between the quality of housing and ill health. We have 
invested over £200m in improving and modernising our tenants homes through the 
Carmarthenshire Homes Standard.  

 

v We have also focused on improving the numbers of affordable homes for rent and to 
buy across the county as well as increasing the number of empty properties that have been 
brought back into use. We have developed an Affordable Housing Delivery Plan 2015-20 
after extensive consultation with the public.  

 
 

 Expected Outcomes (as identified in Corporate Strategy) 
 

Reduction in referrals to 
adults and children’s social 

services 

 
 

Down 
26% & 14% 

Increased availability of rented 
and affordable homes 

+185 

 
Additional Affordable homes 

during 2015/16 
 

H 

Use of leisure facilities 
 

� 
 

Down1.6% 
 
 

attendances were down by 20,000, 

although there are still over 1¼M  

� 
 

 
The Key Improvement Objective Priorities for 2016/17 
 

 
More i - Annual Report 2015/16 and Improvement Plan 2016/17 

  
Page 35



 Page 10 

 

Outcome D: People in Carmarthenshire fulfil their 
learning potential… 

 
 

We all want our children and young people to have the best possible start in life by supporting 
them to gain the skills and knowledge they need to lead happy, healthy, fulfilling lives. We want to 
improve outcomes for all ages through lifelong learning. 
 

 

 

 

 

For the second year in succession our school pupils in Carmarthenshire achieved their best ever 
examination results at GCSE, achieving 61.1% against the key Level 2 Inclusive indicator (at least 5 
number GCSE passes at grade A* to C including mathematics and language) with teacher assessments 
at all other key stages of education improving and comparing favorably with other authorities.  

Best Ever Results for Carmarthenshire schools 
  
 

Ysgol Glan-y-Mor School Achieves the Highest Possible Standards 
 

 

Results of the Key Level 2 inclusive Indicator the most important performance measure has doubled 
over three years, from 30% (2012) to 60% (2015) at the Ysgol Glan-y-Mor School. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

I am so pleased with my results. 
Thanks to all the staff in the school 
for their support. They were 
fantastic" Robbie Williams 
 

“I am extremely happy with my 
achievements. Thanks to Glan-y-
Môr I can now continue with my 
chosen career path!” Tane Davies  

“The school was brilliant. I am really 
happy. Thanks to everyone at the 
school I achieved everything I 
wanted.” Rebecca Roberts  

 

over three years, from 30% (2012) to 60% (2015) at the Ysgol Glan-y-Mor School.

I am so pleased with my results. “I am extremely happy with my“ “The school was brilliant. I am really

Page 36



 Page 11 

 

Improving learner attainment 

To further reduce young people NOT in  

Education, Employment or Training 

Progress during 2015/16 

 
 

v We have established a Carmarthenshire Youth Support Service bringing together the 
Youth Service and Youth Offending Services.   

 
 

v Within our Modernising Education Programme major school development projects were 
completed at Ysgol Bro Dinefwr ,Ysgol Dyffryn Aman, Burry Port Primary School and Ysgol 
Carreg Hirfaen, with thousands of children benefiting. 

 
 

v The number of 7 year old pupils receiving Welsh medium education has increased. The % 
of learners achieving expected levels at Key Stages 2, 3 and 4 have improved. 

 
 

Expected Outcomes (as identified in Corporate Strategy) 

 
 

 

61.1% 
 

of pupils achieving 5 
GCSE at grade A* to C  

including English or Welsh first language and 
Mathematics 

Now ranked 7th in Wales 

 

95.2% 
Attendance at  

Primary Schools  

94.2% 
Attendance at Secondary Schools 

Ranked 5th and 9th in Wales 

3.5% year 11 pupils  

& 

2.8% year 13 pupils  

Not in Education, Employment 
or Training (NEET) 

 

55% of schools 

condition is graded 

‘good’ or 

‘satisfactory’ 
 

 

 

The Key Improvement Objective Priorities for 2016/17 

  

 

More i - Annual Report 2015/16 and Improvement Plan 2016/17  

Attendance at Se
Ranked 5th

Page 37



 Page 12 

 

Outcome E: People who live, work and visit Carmarthenshire 
are safe and feel safer… 

 

Carmarthenshire remains one of the safest areas in the UK. However, we must not become complacent 
and we need to continue to work together with partners to address problems identified by local 
communities. 
 

 

 
Carmarthenshire continues to be one of the safest areas in the UK 

 
Crime rates continue to be significantly lower in Carmarthenshire  

compared to the average for England and Wales 
 
  

Bang to Rights!  
Speeding motorists had red faces having to explain their  

behaviour to the pupils outside their school 
 

One driver was so embarrassed he dodged the ordeal by accepting a fixed penalty notice.  The 
Speeding Initiative outside schools throughout the county is being promoted as part of 
Carmarthenshire's Community Safety Partnership. 
Speeding Initiative outside schools throughout the county is being promoted as part of 
Carmarthenshire's Community Safety Partnership.

Page 38



 Page 13 

 

Progress during 2015/16 
 

v Safeguarding children and adults remains our first priority as a Council and this year a  
Corporate Policy has been developed to ensure all our services have a raised 
awareness and better understanding of procedures in relation to safeguarding.  

 

v Our Team Around the Family (TAF) approach enables us to work together with 
families and other agencies to deliver a plan of support at times when a family 
is facing challenging circumstances. This support also helps to build the families 
resilience and to cope in the future. 

 

v We continue to work with the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) to reduce anti-social 
behaviour. Some development improvements have included:- 

· sharing of information between systems used by Gwalia and the Police 

· links between all the partners of the CSP 
 

v There has been a focus on road safety in the `Carmarthenshire News’ and on the 
CSP website. We have continued with various initiatives such as `Dragon Rider 
Cymru` training for motorcyclists and encouraging young drivers to take part in 
`Pass Plus Cymru` training. 

 

v Work to reduce drug and alcohol misuse continues and we undertook a pilot with the 
Integrated Family Support Team looking at cases where parents had substance misuse 
problems.  

 

Expected Outcomes (as identified in Corporate Strategy) 
 

The Family Information Service (FIS) offers free 

impartial advice and guidance, enabling 

children, young people and their 

families, to have access to a broad 

range of information about what 

services and support is available. 

 
 

Reduction in road casualties  
XX 

 

Data available end of June 

While there has been an increase 

of 10.8% in recorded crime during 

the year, it is difficult to compare 

figures with14/15. Changes made in 

recording data by the police have 

resulted in an increase in the 

accuracy of recording crime.  

2014/15 2015/16 

7,334 8,128 
 

 

 
Incidents 

down  
15.5% 

 

Our priorities for 2016/17 

v We will continue to work in partnership and engage with local communities to reduce crime and 
disorder. 

v We will continue to target speeding including use of Community Speed Watch Schemes. 

v We will continue to make the Safeguarding of children and adults one of our main priorities. 

v By providing targeted prevention, early interventions and effective treatment to minimise the 
harm caused by drugs and alcohol. 
 

 

More i - Annual Report 2015/16 and Improvement Plan 2016/17 

  Page 39



 Page 14 

 

Outcome F: Carmarthenshire’s communities and 
environment are sustainable… 

 
Carmarthenshire is known for its diverse communities and wonderful natural environment and we want 
to ensure that we develop sustainably, so that everyone in the county is able to enjoy a better quality of 
life now and for generations to come. 
 

 

 
Progress during 2015/16 
 

v We have continued to receive and determine applications for renewable energy projects, 
largely in the form of single wind turbines but also that of Brechfa West wind farm. The 
majority of such applications are granted. Those that have not been granted have been 
refused primarily on landscape implications particularly where cumulative impacts on the 
landscape are apparent.   

 

Home Composting 
 

GREEN-FINGERED tenants at Nant-Y-Glo in Pontyberem have been discovering 

the benefits of home composting. Grass cuttings along with kitchen scraps such as 

vegetable peelings and teabags are now being composted instead of just being 

thrown away.  The rich soil conditioner it makes is being used in their flower pots to 

brighten up the council-run sheltered housing complex. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Progress during 2015/16

Page 40



 Page 15 

 

Improving the highway infrastructure network to support  

further economic development and connectivity  

 

v Our positive approach to determining planning applications ensures that further 
opportunities have been provided through the granting of planning applications to meet the 
housing needs, economic needs and indeed community needs (schools etc) of the County.

 

v We have supported 250 residents by giving them digital inclusion skills through key events 
across Communities First areas, allowing them to return to, or enter employment or training. 
We won a two year £90,000 rural grant for the exploitation of digital technology in rural 
Carmarthenshire.   

 

v We have improved digital access in Carmarthenshire during 2015/16 by completing WiFi 
access for all schools and beginning public access to WiFi in the markets at Llanelli and 
Carmarthen. To date 46 out of the 54 BT Exchanges have been enabled for superfast 
broadband. 

 

v We have continued to improve transport links that support economic development and 
sustainability.  

· During 2015/16, construction of the Carmarthen west link road commenced and Phase 
1B of the Cross Hands Economic Link Road, which will improve access at the Strategic 
Employment site, was completed.  

· We resurfaced 27.97 kilometres of highway during 2015/16. 

· Overall, the percentage of roads in poor condition has reduced from 11.9% to 10.7%. 
! However, there is a decline in the condition of A&B class roads. 

· 3,166 metres of new cycleway was completed in 2015/16. 
 

Expected Outcomes (as identified in Corporate Strategy) 

 

Increased rates of recycling 

 

63% 
 
 

 
Well above the national statutory target of 58% for 

2015-16 

Improved digital access 
 

supported residents with digital 
skills 

+ 250 
 

Improved transport links 
 

Resurfaced 

28 
kilometres 

of highway  

 

 

2.5%+  
Increased use of 
renewable energy 
 

 

The Key Improvement Objective Priority for 2016/17 

More i - Annual Report 2015/16 and Improvement Plan 2016/17  Page 41



 Page 16 

 

Outcome G: Carmarthenshire has a stronger and more 
prosperous economy.. 

 
 

Providing secure well paid jobs and training opportunities for local people is central to  everything 
we are seeking to achieve. In the past, too many young people have been forced to leave 
Carmarthenshire to get jobs. Working across all sectors – public, voluntary and private – we want to 
increase prosperity for everyone in the county. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

A number of strategic regeneration projects have delivered 
positive outcomes and improved employment opportunities  
(WAO Annual Improvement Report March 2016) 

 
 
  

 

Vibrant & Viable Places – Tackling Poverty: Opportunity Street, Llanelli 
 

Three properties have been bought as part of a £1.5m Opportunity Street project to further regenerate 
Llanelli town centre. The vacant premises were acquired with assistance from the Welsh Government 
Vibrant and Viable Places funding. Llanelli was allocated £1million under the programme over three years 
2014-17. 
 
The main aim of the fund is to tackle poverty by creating jobs, encouraging skills development, improving 
housing, providing facilities to attract new retail interests and helping people into work. This is a Key 
Improvement Objective Priority for us. 
 

 
 

Page 42



 Page 17 

 

Creating jobs and growth throughout the County 

Tackling Poverty 

Progress during 2015/16 
 

v Our regeneration activity is shaped by effective collaborative working with neighbouring 
councils to form the Swansea Bay City Region (SBCR). To support this, the Strategic 
Regeneration Plan for Carmarthenshire 2015-2030 – Transformations was launched.  
The regeneration of Carmarthenshire for current and future developments is both ambitious 
and challenging, and the Strategic Regeneration Plan for the next 15 years, promotes new 
opportunities for business growth, skills development and job creation, whilst developing  
our knowledge, economy and tourism.  

 
 

v Our Learner Programmes are intrinsically involved with curriculum reform and development 
and are working with schools and local Further Education, to provide meaningful and 
relevant high quality learning opportunities for children and the young people of 
Carmarthenshire. 

 
 

v The SBCR has submitted a ground-breaking ‘Internet Coast’ City Deal bid, in excess of 
£500m over 20 years. By harnessing the transformational power of digital networks, it 
provides a real opportunity to push forward growth in the region and importantly the rural 
economy of West Wales. 

 
 

v The emerging Wellness and Life Science Village, Delta Lakes, will potentially create 1,000 
jobs and see an investment of £100M in Llanelli. 

 

Expected Outcomes (as identified in Corporate Strategy) 
 

180 Jobs created 

109 Jobs safeguarded 

149 people into Jobs  

1,220 Jobs 
accommodated  

2,648 people into 

training 
 

11.8% of Working age population in Carmarthenshire are in receipt on 

out of work benefits  
(down from 12.5% in 2014) 

69% Employment in Carmarthenshire 

 (an increase on 68.6% for the previous year) 
 

 

Nearly £29M Private Sector investment /External funding secured 

12 enterprises created 

13.13ha land developed/ improved 

+162,000sq ft floor space developed 
 

 

The Key Improvement Objective Priorities for 2016/17  
 

 

 

More i - Annual Report 2015/16 and Improvement Plan 2016/17  Page 43



 Page 18 

 

 

 
YOU SAID, WE DID 
 
 
 

We have provided some examples of the positive changes we have made after hearing from 
citizen feedback in our ‘You Said…..We Did….’ Campaign 

 You said... We did... 
Making Better 

Use of 
Resources 

That you would like to be able to make 
card payments at The Hub in Llanelli. 

Self service payment kiosks will be 
installed in The Hub during 2016/17, 
enabling customers to make card (and 
cash) payments. 

Building a 
Better 

Council 

That, although very helpful, members of 
staff within the Contact Centre and 
Customer Service Centers could build 
on their wide knowledge base and 
increase their expertise in some areas. 

Staff receive regular ongoing training and 
awareness sessions to remain up to date 
and knowledgeable on council services. 

Healthier 
You weren’t always aware of the  
acceptable standards we expect 
Tenants to keep their properties in. 

As part of the repairs review we 
undertook a pilot to establish the 
frequency and nature of regular visits to 
all Council tenant’s homes 

Healthier 

That there was a need for smaller type 
homes, mainly for rent and for local 
people. You wanted us to maximise 
use of existing homes, especially 
bringing empty homes back into use.   

We have developed an affordable homes 
plan which addresses these issues and 
sets out how we will deliver over 1,000 
additional affordable homes over   the 
next 5 years with a total investment 
exceeding £60m. 

Education 
Parents wanted to be able to express a 
preference when applying for a school 
place for their child. 

We are implementing a change to the 
school admissions process to allow 
parents to express a 1st, 2nd, and 3rd 
choice when applying for a school place. 

Environment 
You wanted more reassurances when 
sending your children to school with 
Passenger Assistants. 

The Passenger Transport section has 
reminded all transport contractors of 

the need to inform parents or 
guardians of any changes to travel 
arrangements and reminded all 

Passenger Assistants that personal 
identification must be worn at all times 

and shown upon request. 

Economy 
It was sometimes difficult to get through 
to the Housing Benefit team by 
telephone. 

Supervisors have been reminded of the 
importance of monitoring call volumes 
regularly and will adjust call team staffing 
levels as required. 
Additional lines are also opened at peak 
times. 

 

We did 

You 

said 

Page 44



 Page 19 

 

 

i 
 

For further information contact: 
 
 
 
 

� 

 

' 

  

 
Regeneration and Policy 
Chief Executive’s Department 
County Hall 
Carmarthen 
Carmarthenshire   SA31 1JP  
 
Tel: 01267 224486 
Email: performance@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

8 

 
Visit the Council’s website  
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/consultation-
performance/performance-management/ 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Follow us and add your comments on the Council’s Facebook page 

 
Follow this plan and add your Tweets on our Twitter page - #CarmsReport 

 
Carmarthenshire County Council’s Corporate Strategy 2015 - 2020 
 
Our Annual Report 2015/16 and Improvement Plan 2016/17 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



July 2016

For a ‘Quick start’ short summary to this 
document see our Summary 

To monitor the delivery of this plan - 
 www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/performance 

Annual Report 15/16 & 
Improvement Plan 16/17 

Page 47



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2015/16 & Improvement Plan 2016/17 

Welcome from the Leader of the Council 

We welcome constructive comments on our strategies and services. Feedback from customers and service users is 
essential in identifying opportunities for improvement and we hope that if you have any comments or suggestions that 
you believe would help that you will share them with us. Please contact us at:

Listening to You, Carmarthenshire County Council, County Hall,
Carmarthen SA31 1JP or email at ListeningToYou@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

 Cllr Emlyn Dole Mark James CBE 
    

I 

Page 48



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2015/16 & Improvement Plan 2016/17 

Introduction 

Ø includes a Key Improvement Objective Priority - KIOP  

Ø  includes a KIOP  

Annual Reports and Improvement Plans for delivering our side of the Integrated Community 
Strategy (ICS) that we agreed with our partners for the 5 Outcomes and 30 Goals set out 

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø includes a KIOP

Ø includes a KIOP

Ø

Ø

Ø includes a KIOP

Ø includes a KIOP

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø includes a KIOP

Ø

Ø

Ø  includes a KIOP

Ø

Ø

Ø  includes a KIOP

Ø  

Appendices - Our Statutory Measures – 2015/16 results and targets for 2016/17

Page 49



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2015/16 & Improvement Plan 2016/17 

·

·

·

·

·

Page 50



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2015/16 & Improvement Plan 2016/17 

Page 51



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2015/16 & Improvement Plan 2016/17 

.

Page 52



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2015/16 & Improvement Plan 2016/17 

Key overall performance news 

‘Taking everything into account, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the 
services provided by Carmarthenshire County Council overall?’ 

ü The Citizens’ panel have been asked the same question previously and net satisfaction has
improved this year compared to two years ago

a b c d e f g h 

Citizens Panel 
Very 

satisfied 
Fairly 

satisfied 
Total 

satisfied 
Neither 

No  
opinion 

Fairly 
dissatisfied 

Very 
dissatisfied 

Total 
dissatisfie

d 

Net 

Satisfaction#2 

March 2014 
376 responses 

9% 49% 58% 16% 3% 14% 9% 23% 35% 
April 2012 

461 responses
7% 45% 52% 25% 4% 16% 3% 19% 33% 

May 2010 
538 responses

6% 52% 58% 19% 4% 14% 4% 18% 40% 
#1 The Carmarthenshire Citizens’ Panel was established in 2001 and is a joint initiative between Dyfed-Powys Police and the 
Council.  As usual the Survey Data is analysed with the courtesy of Dyfed-Powys Police 
#2 The use of net satisfaction is in line with normal market research practice and the National Survey of Wales approach 
#43Citizens Panel results may be more critical than Resident Survey results. The 2010 Residents Survey showed that 82% of 
residents were satisfied – the 2010 Citizens Panel results were 58% satisfied, a 24% difference.  

Very satisfied, 

9% 

Fairly 

satisfied, 49% 

Neither, 16% 

No opinion, 3% 

Fairly 

dissatisfied, 14% 

Very dissatisfied, 

9% 

58% V 23% 
March 2014 - Responses 376 

Total satisfied 

58%  Total dissatisfied 

23% 

Page 53



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2015/16 & Improvement Plan 2016/17 

Page 54



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2014/15 & Improvement Plan 2015/16 

Improved public satisfaction levels with the services provided by the Council ü

Reduction in organisational ‘running costs’ ü

Increased on line activity to address public queries and transactions ü

Increasing public communication, consultation and engagement ü

Improved staff satisfaction levels ü

Reduced staff sickness absence levels û

Reduction in referrals to adult and children’s social services ü

Increased availability of rented and affordable homes ü

Increased use of leisure facilities û

Improved educational attainment ü

Improved school attendance rates ü

Reduced number of young people Not in Education, Employment or Training 
û

ü

Improved condition of schools ü

Appropriate support provided to children, young people and families ü

Reduction in road casualties 

Reduction in total recorded crime û

Reduction in anti-social behaviour ü

Increased rates of recycling ü

Improved digital access ü

Improved transport links ü

Increased use of renewable energy ü

Increased employment ü

Reduction in working age population in receipt of out of work benefits ü

Increased economic activity and productivity ü

Page 55



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2014/15 & Improvement Plan 2015/16 

**** 
60% 

*** 

** 
40% 

*

Year Improved Constant Declined 
Net Improvement 
(Improved - Declined) 

2015/16
#
 56% (23 measures) 17% (7 measures) 24% (10 measures) 32%

#
 

2014/15 56% (24 measures) 14% (6 measures) 30% (13 measures) 26% 

2013/14 59% (26 measures) 11% (5 measures) 30% (13 measures) 29% 

Page 56



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2014/15 & Improvement Plan 2015/16 

Page 57



Carmarthenshire County Council Annual Report 2014/15 & Improvement Plan 2015/16 

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

i

Page 58



Delivering Our Goals

·

·

ü

ü

û

Page 59



Delivering Our Goals 

Goal: C1 Ensuring each child has the best start in life: 

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

31.7  30.7  30.7  30.2  29.6  28.7  28.6  28.5  27.4  27.3  27.2  26.9  26.8  26.3  25.9  25.5  25.2  24.8  23.6  22.4  21.1  
17.0  

0 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 

% Children aged 4 to 5 overweight or obese 2014/15 

Wales 26.2% 

Page 60



Delivering Our Goals 

·

·

·

·

i

Flying Start Key Measures 
2014/15 
Result 

2015/16 
Target 

2015/16 
Result 

Comment 

The % of children registered to take up the free Flying Start 
child care placement (9.1.8.0) 

79.8% 80.0% 70.4% 
Off target but 

Improved  
#See comment below 

P
The % of attendance at the free Flying Start Child Care 
placement (9.1.8.1) 

77% 75% 79% 
On target and 

improved 

û

The number of children living outside of the Flying Start 
area who are able to access the Flying Start service 
through referral for outreach. (9.1.8.2) 

18 23 17 
Off target and 

Declined 
#See comment below

P

The % of high need families living in a Flying Start area 
receiving at least a monthly contact from the Flying Start 
Health Visiting Service (9.1.8.3) 

90% 90% 96% 
On target and 

improved

P

The % of children living in a Flying Start area that have had 
a needs assessment carried out using the Family 
Assessment Tool within a month of entry to service. (9.1.8.4) 

100% 100% 100% 
On target and 

continues to be at 
maximum result

P

The % of families with additional social welfare needs 
linked to poverty, living in a Flying Start area receiving time 
specified interventions from the wider Flying Start Team 
(9.1.8.6) 

95% 93% 96% 
On target and 

improved

û

The number of children aged 0-4 in Carmarthenshire 
benefitting from the intensive Flying Start service provision 
(9.1.8.7) 

1671 1800 1570 
Off target and 

Declined 
#See comment below

ü

Page 61



Delivering Our Goals

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

û

.

Page 62



Delivering Our Goals

 

Page 63



Delivering Our Goals 

Despite an increase number of places purchased due to expansion,  we shall aim for at least 77% attendance at 
the free Flying Start Child Care placement
We shall aim to reduce the % of unauthorised absence at the free Flying Start Child Care placement from 6.38% 
to 6%
We will aim to increase the number of children living outside of the Flying Start area who are able to access the 
Flying Start service through referral for outreach from 17 to 23
We will ensure that at least 93% of high need families living in a Flying Start area receive least a monthly contact 
from the Flying Start Health Visiting Service
Of families with additional social welfare needs linked to poverty living in a Flying Start area, we will ensure that at 
least 95% receive time specified interventions from the wider Flying Start Team e.g. Social Worker or Family 
Support Officer or Domestic Abuse Project Worker or Midwife (
We will aim for at least 85% of children in Flying Start areas reaching, exceeding or within one age band of their 
development milestone at age 2 years, (assessed within 23-25 month)
We will aim for at least 90% of children in Flying Start areas reaching, exceeding or within one age band of their 
development milestone at age 3 years, (assessed within 35-37 month)
We will implement the Child and Family Unit (CFU) systemic model of working across children’s services teams 

We aim to increase the number of attendances per year at sporting opportunities facilitated by Sport & Leisure 
Officers from 197,899 to 208,000 (a 5% increase) 

10. We shall increase the % of children who can swim 25m aged 11 from TBC to TBC  
11. We shall increase the number of young people (0-16) accessing free swim sessions from TBC to TBC  

i For further Actions please also see goal G5 Tackling poverty and its impact on the local economy and  
      E5 Safeguarding all people from abuse, victimisation, neglect & exploitation

Goal: C2 Preventing ill health and encourage healthy and active living 

ü

Page 64



Delivering Our Goals

û

û

ü

ü

û

ü

ü

Page 65



Delivering Our Goals 

 

1. We will ensure that at least 1,000 people are referred on to the “Vitality Scheme” (NERS – National Exercise 
Referral Scheme) during 2016/17. (3.4.2.5) 

2. We will increase the number of % of people referred to the National Exercise Referral scheme that attend the 1st 
session of the programme from 49.7% to 56% (3.4.2.6) 

3. We shall ensure that at least 50% of people referred to the National Exercise Referral scheme complete the 16 week 
programme. (3.4.2.7) 

4. We will increase the % of schools achieving Phase 4 of the Healthy Schools Initiative from 59% to 60% (8.3.1.5) 

5. We shall increase the number of visits to council sport and leisure centres from 6,905  to 7,251 per 1,000 
population (LCS/0022b) 

6. We will maintain 100% trading standards inspections for high risk businesses (PPN/001i) 

7. Despite fewer resources, we will maintain 100% food hygiene inspections for high risk businesses (PPN/001ii) 

8. We will maintain 100% animal health inspections for high risk businesses (PPN/001iii) 

9. We will maintain the high percentage of food establishments which are broadly compliant with food hygiene 
standards at 93% or above (PPN/009) 

We will develop plans for a new Llanelli Leisure Centre linked to wellness village and life sciences hub 

  

Page 66



Delivering Our Goals 

Goal: C5 Improving housing conditions and reducing homelessness 

ü

ü

ü

ü

% of homes that meet the Carmarthenshire Home Standard (7.5.2.7) 

% of privates sector dwellings that had been vacant for more than 
6 months at 1 April that were returned to occupation during the 
year through direct action by the local authority (PSR/004) 

The number of new additional properties managed by our internal 
social lettings agency (7.3.2.25) 

 
We will improve the Council Housing stock and assist local  

people to gain access to rented and affordable accommodation

Page 67



Delivering Our Goals 

  2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

CHS/WHQS 6% 7% 8% 8% 9% 37% 52% 70% 88% J 

Roofs & Associated 

Components 
100% J J J J J J J J J 

Windows & Doors 58% 65% 74% 86% 95% 100% J J J J 

Loft 0 0 19% 67% 89% 100% J J J J 

Cavity 44% 53% 77% 78% 96% 100% J J J J 

Hard Wired Smoke 

Detectors 
37% 38% 51% 57% 63% 74% 80% 86% 90% J 

Electrical Systems 28% 28% 36% 44% 53% 65% 74% 81% 90% J 

Full Central Heating 73% 78% 79% 83% 86% 91% 94% 95% 97% J 

Energy Efficient Central 

Heating 
3% 6% 8% 22% 30% 52% 64% 76% 88% J 

Kitchens 7% 7% 12% 20% 29% 46% 58% 71% 88% J 

Bathrooms 7% 7% 12% 24% 34% 52% 64% 74% 88% J 

Security Lighting 10% 10% 16% 26% 36% 48% 63% 74% 88% J 

CO Detectors 10% 10% 16% 26% 36% 53% 64% 74% 88% J 

Power Points 4% 7% 14% 24% 35% 51% 63% 74% 88% J 

Energy Rating (SAP >65) 22% 30% 40% 55% 60% 67% 68% 69% 85% J 

Page 68



Delivering Our Goals 

In order to 100% complete of all elements of the 
Carmarthenshire Home Standard by 3.1.12.15 
(excluding acceptable fails) we shall complete 
these seven elements... 
The final number of tenants’ homes with...fuel 
efficient central heating systems (125), kitchens 
(225), bathrooms (175), carbon monoxide detectors 
(200), external security lights (200) , additional 
power points (200) and hard wired smoke detectors 
(125) (11649-11655) 

ü 

All of these elements have been completed and the 
ambitious programme to achieve the 
Carmarthenshire Homes Standard (CHS) by the 
end of 2015 has been delivered on time, to homes 
where tenants have agreed to have work. 

We will invest up to £300,000 to ensure the delivery 
of Local Environmental Plan projects within 
communities (11643) 

ü 

£300,000 of the budget has been committed on 58 
different projects. These projects include demolition 
and removal of garages that were unsafe and 
causing anti social behaviour on estates. Improving 
and extending car parking provision on estates. 
Improving communal green areas on estates and 
encouraging community ownership. Improving 
alleyways, site boundaries and signage on estates.  

Local Authority 

results for 2014/15

Empty 

Homes 

brought back 

into use

Number 

of empty 

homes

% Empty 

Homes 

brought back 

into use

Neath Port Talbot 1,153 1,681 68.59

Torfaen 165 292 56.51

Denbighshire 142 641 22.15

Swansea 456 2,101 21.70

Vale of Glamorgan 175 994 17.61

Wrexham 43 250 17.20

Isle of Anglesey 109 829 13.15

Monmouthshire 64 623 10.27

Cardiff 91 1,391 6.54

Bridgend 76 1,172 6.48

Gwynedd 68 1,193 5.70

Merthyr Tydfil 36 651 5.53

Carmarthenshire 135 2,479 5.45

Caerphilly 42 932 4.51

Blaenau Gwent 21 540 3.89

Flintshire 30 774 3.88

Ceredigion 27 747 3.61

Rhondda Cynon Taf 114 3,381 3.37

Newport 42 1,250 3.36

Conwy 42 1,569 2.68

Pembrokeshire 30 1,240 2.42

Powys 28 1,530 1.83

Wales 3,089 26,260 11.76

Page 69



Delivering Our Goals 

We shall evaluate the impact that the Local 
Environmental Plan projects have had on the local 
communities where a project was completed during 
the previous financial year. (11162) 

ü 

58 projects have been completed. Projects have 
focused on helping tenants feel safe and secure, 
combatting anti social behaviour, improving the  
appearance of the area and improving health and 
well-being. Those tenants that have completed and 
returned the evaluation forms report 100% 
satisfaction. 

We shall increase the % of Local Authority homes 
that have achieved the CHS as a % of Local 
Authority Housing Stock (7.5.2.7) (Target 100%) 

ü 
The ambitious programme to achieve the 
Carmarthenshire Homes Standard (CHS) by the 
end of 2015 has been completed. 

We will maintain a high satisfaction level of at least 
87% on the processes for Repairs and 
Maintenance based on customer feedback (11642) 

ü

Due to staffing pressures it has been difficult to 
identify adequate resource to fully undertake this 
engagement process with tenants during 2015/16 
which has resulted in a low number being surveyed. 
Despite this, the result shows consistent high 
satisfaction rating being achieved.  

We will increase the number of affordable homes in 
the County (11662) (152 homes) 

ü

We have delivered in partnership 185 additional  
affordable homes in the county during 2015/16. 
This figure was made up mainly of Social Housing 
Grant developments, a limited number of buying 
back homes in private sector and developer 
contributions. The figure was higher than normal 
due to the delivery of two larger extra care schemes 
in Carmarthen and Ammanford with 110 homes. 

We will develop an Affordable Housing Plan: Your 
Homes, Your Future – Getting it right together, 
which includes a comprehensive consultation with 
the residents of Carmarthenshire. This will help us 
to increase the supply of affordable properties 
within the county (11663) 

ü

An Affordable Housing Committment Plan 2015-20 
was developed after extensive consultation with the 
public - over 800 responses and presented to Full 
Council on 9/9/15.  The Affordable Homes Delivery 
Plan which will reduce the gap between what 
affordable homes are needed and the supply was 
agreed by Full Council on 10th March, 2016  

We will increase the number of private sector 
dwellings returned to occupation during the year 
through direct action by the local authority that had 
been vacant for more than 6 months. (PSR/004) 
(Target 5.24%, 140 properties) 

ü

5.73% of previously vacant properties have been 
returned to occupation during 2014/15 this equates 
to 153 properties.  An good improvement and our 
highest number to date. 

We shall address recommendations from the 
Community Scrutiny Task & Finish Review of the 
Private Sector Empty Properties which is aimed to 
improve the service in the future. (11664) 

ü 
We have developed and are in the process of 
progressing an action plan which addresses the 
recommendations from Task & Finish group 

We will retain the low average number of calendar 
days taken to deliver low cost adaptation works in 
private dwellings where the Disabled Facilities 
Grant process is not used (PSR/006)   (Target 8 days) 

ü 
We have maintained an average of 8 days to 
deliver low cost adaptations. 

We will further increase the property portfolio of our 
internal social lettings agency with new additional 
properties (7.3.2.25) (12 additional properties) 

ü 
An additional 12 properties were added to the 
internal social lettings agency portfolio during 
2015/16. 

We shall undertake a Health Impact Study to 
evaluate the affect the Carmarthenshire Home 
Standards has had on our tenants (11656) 

ü 

The last tenants survey was undertaken during 
February/March 2016 with the results expected by 
June/July 2016. This will be followed by the major 
academic study on tenants health (analysing actual 
health data over the period of the CHS programme) 
which is due to report by Autumn 2016 

Page 70



Delivering Our Goals 

·

·

·

Page 71



Delivering Our Goals 

 

We shall increase the availability of rented and affordable 
homes to support the needs of local people by implementing 

our affordable homes delivery plan 

·

·

·

·

Page 72



Delivering Our Goals 

v

v

v

v

v

Affordable Homes Delivery
Est. No. 

of homes
Funding 
source

HRA 
investment 
(£millions)

Total 
investment 
(£millions)

Managing homes in the private sector funding the Social 
lettings Agency

242 HRA 1.1 1.1

Bringing empty houses back into homes 280
WG “Houses 
into Homes” 
fund/HRA

4.0 5.6

Buy existing homes in private sector 187 HRA 20.2 20.2

Housing Association development- committed schemes 59 SHG 0.52 

Housing Association development- future priorities 
Rural Areas 
Regeneration initiatives 
Unallocated Grant 

6 
43 
77 

SHG 0.1 
1.0 
5.3 

10.3 

Council New Build and Land Acquisition 
New Build: Ammanford & Amman Valley, Llanelli & District 
Land Acquisition 
Carmarthen & the West 
Carmarthenshire Rural & Market Towns 

45 HRA 5.6 5.6 

Developers contribution to homes in the area3 88 
Private 
Finance 

11.0 

Total 1027* £31.0 £60.6 

 
 

We did 

You 

said 

Page 73



Delivering Our Goals

We shall increase the number of affordable homes in the County by delivering year one of the 
affordable homes plan (7.3.2.24) 

160 
additional 

homes 

We will increase the % of additional affordable housing units provided during the year  (PLA/006b) 30% 

We shall  commission a research in order to improve our understanding of housing need in rural 
areas. (12058) 

March 
2017 

1. We shall provide help and guidance to child care leavers wherever possible to avoid homelessness (SCC/35) 

2. We shall complete the Health Impact Study, looking at tenants actual health, during the period of CHS investment 
during 2016 (11656) 

3. We will increase the percentage of private sector dwellings returned to occupation during the year through direct 
action by the local authority that had been vacant for more than 6 months from 5.73% (153 properties) to 6% (160 
properties)  (PSR/004) 

4. We shall progress with the Private Sector Empty Property Action Plan 2016 which derived from the Community 
Scrutiny Task & Finish Review and recommendations which is aimed to improve the service in the future. (12059) 

We shall increase the number of new additional properties managed by our internal social lettings agency from 12 
to 24. (7.3.2.25)

Page 74



Delivering Our Goals 

F1: Living within our environmental limits using only our fair-share of earth's resources and minimising our carbon 
emissions                                                                               
F2: Reducing waste and moving towards becoming a zero-waste county  
F3: Supporting opportunities for the building of economically viable and sustainable communities 
F4: Protect, enhance & conserve our natural & built environment & champion biodiversity in the County 
F5: Developing resilient and sustainable communities 
F6: Developing sustainable transport options                                                                     
F7: Ensuring the promotion of the Welsh language and Welsh culture 

ü

ü

ü

ü

  

Page 75



Delivering Our Goals 

Goal: F3 Supporting opportunities for the building of economically viable and sustainable communities 

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

Page 76



Delivering Our Goals 

ü

 

ü

ü

 

ü

1. We will commence a new six year regeneration cycle in 2016/17 to secure funding and prepare projects for 
delivery that will realise significant economic outputs later on in the funding cycle 

2. We will support opportunities for the building of economically viable and sustainable communities by developing 
and delivering the Carmarthen & Rural key 16/17 projects, to include: 

· Fully commit Transformational Commercial Property Development Fund Pot; 

· Fully commit Carmarthenshire Rural Enterprise Fund Pot; 

· Completion of Parry Thomas Centre Capital Scheme 
3. We will support opportunities for the building of economically viable and sustainable communities by developing 

and delivering the Llanelli and Llanelli Coastal Belt key 16/17 projects, to include: 

· Secure  ‘Building for the Future’ funding to enable the redevelopment of Llanelli YMCA building for 
commercial use; 

· Delivery of final year programme of Viable and Viable Places and complete acquisition and redevelopment of 
town centre premises. Fully allocate Llanelli Town Centre Loan Fund 

4. We will support opportunities for the building of economically viable and sustainable communities by developing 
and delivering the Ammanford & Cross Hands Growth Zone key 16/17 projects to include: 

· Secure European Rural Development funding  (ERDF) to enable the future delivery of Cross Hands East 
Strategic Employment (Phase 2 Project); 

· Bring Former Police Station Site and Court House back into commercial use to contribute to the Town Centre 
offer 

· Repositioning of entrance to reduce congestion on Ffordd William Walker and assist overall transport and 
movement. 

5. We will support opportunities for the building of economically viable and sustainable communities by developing 
and delivering the Countywide Employment & Skills Plan to feature: 

· Developing a marketing & communication plan to support community engagement 

· Linking employability projects (Cynnydd, Workways+, Communities First, C4W, LIFT, Cam Nesa, USG Hub) 
with relevant opportunities 

· Developing an action plan for Community Benefits in partnership with our Procurement Team 

6. We will develop the Regional Engagement Team for the Swansea Bay City Region. 
 

Llanelli people benefitting from learning 
new digital skills at their local library 
through C1st 

Page 77



Delivering Our Goals

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

G1 – Developing business growth, retention specialisation (including retaining young people) 
G2 - Maximising job creation for all 
G3 - Developing a knowledge economy & innovation 
G4 - Ensuring distinctive places & competitive infrastructures 
G5 - Tackling poverty and its impact on the local economy 
G6 - To build a bilingual economy and workforce 

·

·

ü

ü

ü

Page 78



Delivering Our Goals

 

Goal: G1 Developing business growth, retention specialisation (including retaining young people) 

ü

ü

ü

ü

· planning and carrying out strategic research that assists us for example in accommodation and hotel studies 

· acting as a catalyst and relationship builder with private, public & 3rd Sector to improve the tourism 

· ensuring Carmarthenshire is effectively & innovatively promoted as a vibrant area to visit and stay 

ü

ü

ü

Page 79



Delivering Our Goals

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

Cllr Meryl Gravell (Executive Board for 
regeneration and leisure) pictured with 
Nick Cvetkovic 

Pupils at a World of Work day

Page 80



Delivering Our Goals 

Pareto:

Goal: G2 Maximising job creation for all 

(StatsWales (APS/LFS), March 2016)

·

·

Page 81



Delivering Our Goals 

Measure 
2014/15 

Result 
Target 

2015/16 

Result 
Target 

2016/17 

Target 

Job Creation 352 N/A 180 91 299 

Jobs Safeguarded 210 N/A 109 120 166 

Jobs Accommodated 100 N/A 1,220 1024 32 

· The South West Wales Property Development Fund · Account Management of Carmarthenshire businesses 

· Llanelli Town Centre Regeneration · Cross Hands East Phase 1 Infrastructure Project 

 

Creating jobs and growth throughout the County

Page 82



Delivering Our Goals

ü

v

v

v

ü

ü

ü

ü

v

v

Council Chairman Peter Hughes Griffiths with Developer Andrew 
Bassett at the opening of the South West Wales Property 
Development Funded Office Development in Carmarthen

Page 83



Delivering Our Goals

ü

We will focus on the ‘Wellness and Life Science Village’/Delta Lakes project by 
concluding the Business Case, appointing a team to develop the project moving 
forward, secure funding for the project concept and establish technical designs

We will launch and fully commit a new £2m Carmarthenshire Rural Enterprise fund, 
which will provide assistance to owner occupiers to develop new and improve 
existing commercial buildings where jobs are to be created 

We will launch and fully commit a new £3m Transformational Commercial Property 
Development Fund to enable the acquisition and development of key strategic 
buildings and sites to bring forward future commercial opportunities, where new jobs 
and economic growth result.   

We will through targeted finance fund and social enterprise support, work with 40 
key account organisations/enterprises to deliver on jobs & growth opportunities  

Jobs created - 23 
Jobs safeguarded - 46 

We will provide support to private Sector Developers and Businesses Owners to 
bring forward key pending private sector led developments in Ammanford and Cross 
Hands  

Jobs Created – 200 
Jobs Accommodated - 32 

Through property acquisition we will refurbish targeted premises within Llanelli town 
centre for commercial and residential use 

Jobs created - 4 

We will identify and provide business support to the proposed new tenants of the 
new Parry Thomas Commercial and Events building on the Museum of Speed site 
in Pendine 

Jobs created 12 

We will manage a professional & business working relationship with key personnel 
of key strategic businesses/employers across the 6 transformational project areas 

Jobs Created – 60 
Jobs safeguarded – 120 

See Goal F3 for our LEADER and Communities First programmes also linked to this KIOP  
 

Economy Minister Edwina Hart meeting representatives 
from ARCH and the council on a visit to the proposed 
site at Delta Lakes. 

Page 84



Delivering Our Goals

Goal: G3 Developing a knowledge economy & innovation 

ü

Page 85



Delivering Our Goals 

ü

!

ü

ü

ü

ü

!

Page 86



Delivering Our Goals

Goal: G4 Ensuring distinctive places & competitive infrastructures 

·

·

·

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

Page 87



Delivering Our Goals

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

üüü

Page 88



Delivering Our Goals

ü

ü

ü

Tackling poverty and its impact on the local economy

Page 89



Delivering Our Goals 

Goal: G5 Tackling poverty and its impact on the local economy 

(European Council & European Commission, 2004)

· just over a third of households in Carmarthenshire can be defined as living in poverty, this is above the Welsh
average.

· poverty limits the opportunities and prospects for children and young people, damages the quality of life for
families and communities and harms the health, well-being and life expectancy of far too many.

· poverty is not only an issue which affects us here and now but also one which has a long term detrimental effect
on people’s lives and our society in the future.

· poverty has a detrimental impact for individuals and communities both directly and indirectly affected

· the cross cutting nature of poverty impacts across all areas of society and services delivered by the Council

· the work of the Elected Members Tackling Poverty Focus Group

Household Income Figures Source: CACI’s  ‘PayCheck’ data 

Households 

Living in 

Poverty 

2013 2014 2015 

Carmarthenshire Wales Carmarthenshire Wales Carmarthenshire Wales 

28,543 

(35%) 

368,119 

(28%) 

29,956 

(37.1%) 

446,586 

(33.6%) 

29,086 

(36.3%) 

459,283 

(35%) 

 

Page 90



Delivering Our Goals

·

·

·

£0 

£5,000 

£10,000 

£15,000 

£20,000 

£25,000 

£30,000 

£35,000 

Carms Wales Carms Wales Carms Wales 

2013 2014 2015 

Mean (average) £30,207 £29,386 £29,485 £31,452 £29,160 £31,131 

Median (mid value) £23,284 £24,721 £23,043 £24,108 £23,156 £24,271 

Household Income CACI Paycheck Data 
2015 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

35% 

40% 

2013 2014 2015 

Carmarthenshire Households 

living in Poverty 

Carms Wales Severe poverty 

CACI Paycheck Data 2015 

Page 91



Delivering Our Goals 

Last Year’s Commitments Progress Comment 

We will undertake a study of Rural 
Poverty in Carmarthenshire to identify 
need / hidden poverty in rural 
communities (11825) 

ü

The Rural Poverty study was conducted on behalf of the Grŵp Cefn Gwlad 
rural development partnership. The study undertook a full assessment of need 
within rural communities in respect of issues such as prosperity, education and 
housing. Existing statistical information was used, together with original survey 
research of over a 1,000 rural households. This produced a highly credible and 
unique view on the issues of rural poverty in Carmarthenshire which is being 
used as a solid evidence base on which funding decisions are being made. 
The LEADER team are engaging with local people to identify innovative 
solutions to some of the issues raised which could potentially be piloted under 
the new programme.  

We will formulate a tackling poverty 
action plan for Carmarthenshire, 
monitoring headline actions (11826) 

ü

An action plan has now been formulated and will be updated annually to 
capture any new or updated tackling poverty activity. This action plan will form 
the basis of the Tackling Poverty KIOP for 2016/17  
(see How we plan to achieve the KIOP this year) 

Preventing poverty 

% pupils that are eligible for Free 
School Meals who achieved the 
Level 2 threshold including a GCSE 
grade A*-C in English or Welsh first 
language & mathematics (5.0.3.1) 

Target: 31.60%  

ü

The performance of pupils in receipt of eligible Free School Meals has been 
improved across nearly all Key Stages with 33.69% achieving the Level 2 
threshold inclusive measure which is an improvement on 28.85% for the 
previous year. This success reflects the impact of work undertaken by schools 
and officers focusing directly on higher achievement for this vulnerable group.  

Helping people into work 

% of people aged 16-64 in 
Employment in Carmarthenshire (Oct 
14 -Sep 15) (Source: Annual 
Population Survey ONS) (Previous 
Year Result: 68.6% WA: 69.5%)  

ü

The % of people aged 16-64 who are in employment in Carmarthenshire has 
steadily risen over the last three years from 66.7% in September 2013 to 
68.6% in September 2014 and 69% in September 2015. Although 
employment figures are consistently below that of the Wales average, 
unemployment rates continue to be less than 1% point lower in 
Carmarthenshire than for Wales as a whole.  

The % of children living in workless 
households (Source: Welsh 
Government Stats Wales - 2014) 
(Previous year Result: 20.4% 
(Wales Average 16.5%)   

ü

The % of children living in workless households in Carmarthenshire has 
reduced dramatically from 20.4% at December 2013 to 14.8% at December 
2014 a reduction of over 2000 children.   

We will continue to work to support 
interventions which address the issue 
of NEETs (16-25) (11827) 

ü

Work is on-going to deliver the Welsh Government`s Youth Engagement & 
Progression Framework (YEPF). The following are some actions put in place 
to help reduce the number of young people becoming NEET; Year 11 
Information Advice and Guidance from Job Centre Plus staff; Careers Events; 
Year 11 AS level entry requirements of GCSE Maths & English; Common Area 
Prospectus and Application Process (CAP) – similar to UCAS university 
process; 11-19 Education Review in Carmarthenshire; Closer links with our 
Regeneration team Page 92



Delivering Our Goals 

The % of Year 11 leavers (aged 
15/16) that are known not to be in 
education, employment or training 
(NEET) (5.1.0.1)   Target 3.0% 
(previous year 3.4%)       

û

Unfortunately there has been a slight increase in the % NEET for year 11 
leavers to 3.5% but the number has remained the same at 69 pupils for the 
last two years. Due to the decrease in total of year 11 leavers the % result has 
increased. The Youth Service has been subject to considerable financial and 
staffing uncertainty over the past year which has affected the capacity of staff 
to support young people effectively. Restructuring of the Youth Service is now 
complete and it is hoped that approval will finally be gained for the Cynnydd 
project, bringing an additional £2.2M of European Social Fund (ESF) to 
support young people at risk of becoming NEET. 

Improving the lives of those living in poverty 

We will reduce the average number 
of days taken to process new 
Housing/Council Tax Benefit claims 
(6.6.1.2) Target: 24.5 days       

ü

We have exceeded our target for reducing the average time for processing 
housing/council tax benefit claims by over 2 days in the last financial year. Our 
target was a reduction from 26 to 24.50 days however our average time for 
processing claims at March 31st 2016 is 21.76 days.  

We will retain the low average 
number of days taken to process 
notifications of changes of 
circumstances in Housing/Council 
Tax Benefit claims (6.6.1.3) Target 5 
days 

û

There is a slight decline in the number of days taken to process Housing and 
Council Tax change of circumstances and the average at end of 2015/16 was 
5.23 days. There has been a conscious change of approach with resources 
and processes focusing on New Claims processing, with a resultant significant 
improvement in that measure. This has however meant results for Change in 
Circumstances have slipped very slightly. Nevertheless the result is still well 

within the top quartile of the latest available all-Wales comparative data.  

We will retain the high % of recently 
calculated Housing/Council Tax 
Benefit claims that have been 
calculated accurately based on a 
sample check at 94% or above 
(6.6.1.9)  Target  94%

ü

During 2015/16 95.45% of the calculated claims were correct based on a 
sample check which has exceeded our target and showing an improvement on 
the previous year of 93.94% 

% of working age population in 
receipt of out of work benefits (Nov 
14 -Nov 15) (Source: ONS) 
(Previous Year Result: 12.5% WA: 
12.7%) 

ü
The % of the working age population in Carmarthenshire in receipt of out of 
work benefits has reduced in 2015 to 11.1% 

We will continue to raise awareness 
of welfare reforms, particularly the 
roll-out of Universal Credit affecting 
Housing Benefit recipients’ and 
engage with partners to ensure that 
both customers and landlords are 
properly supported (11794) 

ü

Universal Credit (UC) rollout in Carmarthenshire for single claimants began in 
Oct15 consequently only very limited numbers have gone onto UC. Information 
in relation to UC is on the website. The new Delivery Partnership Agreement 
(DPA) with the Dept Work & Pensions (DWP) is in place for 2016/17 whereby 
the Authority will provide (amongst other things) budgeting support and 
supporting digital access where required. The Welfare Reform Partnership 
Steering Group involves a number of our services as well as key partners are 
currently preparing impact mitigation actions to consider going forward. 

We will help additional residents in 
Carmarthenshire fight fuel poverty in 
their communities by co-ordinating 
‘Fuel Clubs’ to bulk purchase oil and 
a reduced price. (11164)  

ü

Fourteen fuel clubs now exist across Carmarthenshire introducing residents to 
cheaper fuel options in the form of community bulk oil orders and credit union 
services. Fuel club coordinators have received training to become energy 
champions within their community to encourage fellow residents to engage in 
energy saving opportunities. (see below for further information) 

Page 93



Delivering Our Goals

We will develop a Tackling Poverty Policy statement outlining the Council’s overarching approach to 
tackling poverty. (12137) 

August 
2016 

We will establish a Tackling Poverty Advisory Panel to oversee the Tackling Poverty Action Plan and 
support the Executive Board Member with responsibility for Tackling Poverty in executing their 
responsibilities. (12138) 

August 
2016 

We will update the tackling poverty action plan to reflect priorities for 2016/17 and embed it into the 
KIOP. (12139) 

July 2016 

Preventing Poverty 

We will further develop the Team Around the Family (TAF) approach across the county for 0-25 year 
olds as a means of accessing preventative services, in accordance with the implementation of the 
SSWB Act (2014).We will actively engage in planning for future change and sustainability in view of 
changes to the Families First (FF) grant and focus on reducing the need for statutory care and 
support. (12140) 

March 
2017 

We will continue to implement the final year of the expanded Flying Start (FS)programme, promoting 
early intervention for disadvantaged families with children (0-3) living in specific deprived 
communities. We will actively engage in planning for future change and sustainability in accordance 
with Welsh Government future guidance for the grant. (12141) 

March 
2017

We will continue to implement the final year of the re-commissioned Families First (FF) (0-25) 
programme, promoting early intervention for disadvantaged families across the County. We will 
actively engage in planning for future change and sustainability in accordance with Welsh 
Government future guidance for the grant. (12142) 

March 
2017

We will further develop childcare and play opportunities in line with gaps and priorities detailed in the 
respective Child Care and Play Sufficiency Action Plans 16/17. (12143) 

March 
2017 

% pupils that are eligible for Free School Meals who achieved the Level 2 threshold including a GCSE 
grade A*-C in English or Welsh first language & mathematics (5.0.3.1) 2015/16 Target: 31.60% Result: 33.69) 

34.20% 

Helping People Into Work 

% of people aged 16-64 in Employment in Carmarthenshire (Oct 14-Sep15) (Source: Annual Population 

Survey ONS)      Result: 69% (Wales Average 70.3%) 
- 

The % of children living in workless households (Source: Welsh Government Stats Wales - 2014) 

14.8% (Wales Average 14.6%) 
- 

Page 94



Delivering Our Goals 

 

Ø (Economic)
Ø (Education/Skills)
Ø (Health)

The Communities First Programme is delivered geographically across one Cluster Area – Tyisha, Bigyn, Glanymor, 
Llwynhendy, Hengoed, Lliedi, Ammanford, Trimsaran & Felinfoel 

Improving the lives of those living in poverty 

We will deliver a campaign to raise awareness of financial advice and support available to residents. 
(12144)

We will support local communities to develop projects/activities to address issues of rural poverty 
highlighted through the rural poverty study 2015. (12145) 

ongoing 

We will retain the reduced average number of days taken to process new Housing/Council Tax 
Benefit claims (6.6.1.2) (2015/16 Target: 24.5 days Result: 21.76 days) 

23 days 

We will retain the low average number of days taken to process notifications of changes of 
circumstances in Housing/Council Tax Benefit claims (6.6.1.3) (2015/16 Target:5 days Result: 5.23 days) 

5.5 days

We will retain the high % of recently calculated Housing/Council Tax Benefit claims that have been 
calculated accurately based on a sample check (6.6.1.9)    (2015/16 Target:94% Result: 95.45%) 

95%

% of working age population in receipt of out of work benefits (Nov 14 -Nov 15) (Source: ONS) 
(Previous Year Result: 12.5% WA: 12.7%) 

- 

We will help additional residents in Carmarthenshire fight fuel poverty in their communities by co-
ordinating ‘Fuel Clubs’ to bulk purchase oil and a reduced price. (12146)  

Mar 2017 
& ongoing 

It was sometimes difficult to get through to the 
Housing Benefit team by telephone 

· Supervisors have been reminded of the importance of
monitoring call volumes regularly and will adjust call team
staffing levels as required.

· Additional lines are also opened at peak times

We did 

You 

said 

Page 95



Delivering Our Goals

ü

ü

!

!

91 Communities 

First residents have 

secured 
employment 

403 supported with 

employment 

support 

130 workless 

households 

supported 

161 adults 

supported with 

digital skills 

276 accessed 

financial inclusion 

support 

743 children 

supported to do well 

in school 

327 participated in 

healthy cooking 

workshops 

172 accredited 

qualifications gained 

by adults 

63 adults 

participated in our 

wellbeing 
programme 

Over 800 people 

volunteered over 
9,700 Time Credits 

earned 

90 adults supported 

to be engaged in 

their children's 
education 

208 adults took part 

in physical activity 

programmes 

Page 96



Delivering Our Goals

ü

ü

ü

!

ü

ü

ü

!

(12150)

(12151)

Council apprentices with representatives of the 
council's Executive Board and staff 

Page 97



Delivering Our Goals 

Goal: G6 To build a bilingual economy and workforce 

ü

ü

ü

· A higher public profile, wider support base as businesses increase the size of their target market, and promote
customer loyalty
Page 98



Delivering Our Goals 

· Language is an important part of every person’s identity

· The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 gives the Welsh language an official status in Wales

· A person can express themselves more effectively in their chosen language

· Providing bilingual services and contributes to equality and good practice

· Respecting the language choice of Welsh speakers and non-Welsh speakers

· Contribute towards protecting the county’s intrinsic language and culture

· Research shows that being bilingual promotes the ability to solve problems and learn other languages

· Win instant rapport with clients

(12152)

Page 99



22
nd

21
st

20
th

19
th

18
th

17
th

16
th

15
th

14
th

13
th

12
th

11
th

10
th

9
th

8
th

7
th

6
th

5
th

4
th

3
rd

2
nd

1
st

2 Visits to Sport & Leisure facilities per 1000 population (LCS/002b) 6,905

4 Days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant (PSR/002) 232

People in Carmarthenshire are healthier

A B

Worst results Best Results

Arrows start from our 2013/14 position to our 2014/15 position

Our 2015/16

result and

change

How our results rank compared to 21 authorities in Wales and our change in position
The 41 measures published by all councils in Wales and our results for 2015/16 and

whether they have improved on 2014/15

4 Days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant (PSR/002) 232

8 % New affordable housing units/all new housing units (PLA/006b) 8

9 % Private sector dwellings returned to occupation (PSR/004) 5.73

16 No. of visits to Public Libraries per 1,000 pop. (LCL/001b) 7,203

People in Carmarthenshire fulfil their learning potential

P
age 100



The following tables provide detailed measure by measure profiles for performance measures that are 
measured by all Councils in Wales 

J L
p q

P O

J p P 

p q

P O 

J L 

P
age 101



L q P

J p P

J L p q
P O

L q P

P
age 102



J L p q
P O

J p P

J p P

P
age 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

20
th

 JUNE 2016 
 
 

Community Scrutiny Committee Forward Work 
Programme for 2016/17 

 

 

To consider and comment on the following issues: 
 

• That the Committee confirm its Forward Work Programme for 2016/17.  
  

Reasons:  
 

• The County Council’s Constitution requires scrutiny committees to develop and publish 
annual forward work programmes that identify issues and reports to be considered 
during the course of the municipal year. 

 

 
To be referred to the Executive Board for decision: NO 
 

 

 
Executive Board Member Portfolio Holder: NOT APPLICABLE  
 

 
 
Directorate: 
Chief Executive’s  
  
Name of Head of Service: 
Linda Rees-Jones  
 
 
Report Author:  
Matthew Hughes  
 

 
Designations: 
 
 
 
Head of Administration & Law  
 
 
 
Assistant Consultant  

 
Tel Nos. / E-Mail Addresses: 
 
 
 
01267 224010 
lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  
 
 
01267 224029  
mahughes@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  
 

  

Agenda Item 8

Page 105



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

20
th

 JUNE 2016 
 
 

Community Scrutiny Committee Forward Work 
Programme for 2016/17 

  

 

 
Purpose of the briefing paper 
 
The purpose of this paper is to inform the development of the Community Scrutiny 
Committee forward work programme for 2016/17. 
 
The purpose of the Forward Work Programme 
 
Article 6.2 of the County Council’s Constitution states that: “Each scrutiny committee is 
required to develop and publish an annual forward work programme, identifying issues and 
reports to be considered during the course of a municipal year”.  
 
The development of a work programme: 
 

• Provides an opportunity for members to determine the priority issues to be considered 
by their scrutiny committee over the course of the next year. 

•  

• Provides a focus for both officers and members, and is a vehicle for communicating the 
work of the Committee to the public. The programme (see attached report) will be 
published on the council’s website and will be updated on a quarterly basis – 
www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/scrutiny – and sent to key stakeholders for information. It 
will also be updated on a quarterly basis. 

 

• Ensures agreement of provisional agendas for scheduled scrutiny meetings within the 
council diary. The Programme is a flexible document that can be amended to reflect 
additional meetings and agenda items during the course of the year. 

 
Members will recall that the Committee held an informal planning session on the 8th April 
2016 to consider the draft briefing paper and begin the process of formulating the forward 
work programme for 2016/17. The outcome of this meeting is now presented to the 
Committee in this briefing paper for formal approval. 
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

 
YES  
 

 
 

Page 106



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report.  
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
Head of Administration & Law  

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
YES 
 

 
YES 

 
NONE  

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 

 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities – In line with requirements of the County 
Council’s Constitution. 
  

 
2. Legal – In line with requirements of the County Council’s Constitution. 
 

 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
Head of Administration & Law  

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A  
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

 
Community 
Scrutiny 
Committee Reports 
and Minutes  
 

 
Meetings held up to July 2015: 
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-
meetings/agendas-minutes-(archive)/  
 
Meetings from September 2015 onwards: 
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=186 
  

 

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

  

 

Community Scrutiny Committee 
 

Forward Work Programme 2016/17 
Briefing Paper 

 

20th June 2016 

 

 
 
1. Purpose of the briefing paper 

 
The purpose of this paper is to inform the development of the Community Scrutiny 
Committee forward work programme for 2016/17. 
 
 

2. The purpose of the Forward Work Programme 
 
Article 6.2 of the County Council’s Constitution states that: “Each scrutiny committee 
is required to develop and publish an annual forward work programme, identifying 
issues and reports to be considered during the course of a municipal year”. 
 
The development of a work programme:  
 

• Provides an opportunity for members to determine the priority issues to be 
considered by their scrutiny committee over the course of the next year. 
 

• Provides a focus for both officers and members, and is a vehicle for 
communicating the work of the Committee to the public. The programme (see end 
of this report) will be published on the council’s website and will be updated on a 
quarterly basis – www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/scrutiny – and sent to key 
stakeholders for information. It will also be updated on a quarterly basis. 

 

• Ensures agreement of provisional agendas for scheduled scrutiny meetings within 
the council diary. The programme is a flexible document that can be amended to 
reflect additional meetings and agenda items during the course of the year. 

 
This briefing paper makes reference to issues emerging from the Executive Board’s 
Forward Work Programme, a review of key issues to emerge from the Committee’s 
work over the past year, together with any uncompleted scrutiny business from the 
Committee. This information, together with standard scrutiny items (e.g. budget 
consultation reports and performance monitoring reports) has informed the 
development of the briefing paper which provides a broad outline of suggested areas 
for the Community Scrutiny Committee to consider. 
 
Members will recall that the Committee held an informal planning session on the 8th 
April 2016 to consider the draft briefing paper and begin the process of formulating 

Page 109



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

the forward work programme for 2016/17. The outcome of this meeting is now 
presented to the Committee in this briefing paper for formal approval. 
 
 

3. Membership and remit of the Committee 
 
The Community Scrutiny Committee has 13 members. It has responsibility for the 
following services and issues: 

 

• Public sector housing  

• Private sector housing  

• Regeneration  

• Community regeneration / 
development  

• Economic development   

•  European grants  
 

• Other External funding  

• Libraries  

• Museums  

• Archives 

• Planning policy  

• Recreation and leisure  

• Sport 

 
 
4. Community Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
 
4.1 Performance & Progress Monitoring 

 
Items within this section have been included to reflect the monitoring role of scrutiny 
and particularly to enable the Community Scrutiny Committee to hold the Executive 
Board to account in key areas.  
 
Included are standard scrutiny monitoring reports and monitoring of other key 
priority/risk areas that have been identified by the former scrutiny committees during 
last/previous years’ work programmes.  

 

 
Item 
 

 
Rationale  

 
Frequency / Date 

Performance 
Monitoring Reports 
 

This is a standard 6-monthly report 
which allows members to undertake 
their monitoring role in relation to the 
department’s services. The report also 
includes details of the compliments and 
complaints received by the department. 
Following agreement by the Scrutiny 
Chairs & Vice-Chairs Forum, the 
performance monitoring reports will now 
be presented for Quarter 1 and Quarter 
3 with the standard Annual Report and 
Improvement Plan item now providing 
an end of year overview. 
 

Every 6 months – 
20th July 2016, 
29th September 
2016 and 17th 
February 2017 

Revenue / Capital  
Budget Monitoring 
Reports  
 

This is a standard item which allows 
members to undertake their monitoring 
role of the departmental budget. 
 

Quarterly – 20th 
July 2016 
onwards  

Page 110



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
Item 
 

 
Rationale  

 
Frequency / Date 

Community Scrutiny 
Committee Action & 
Referral Updates 

These quarterly update reports outline 
the progress being made in relation to 
any actions and referrals resulting from 
discussions at the Committee’s 
meetings. 
 

Quarterly – 20th 
July 2016 
onwards  

Community Scrutiny 
Committee Forward 
Work Programme 
2016/17 
 

The County Council’s Constitution 
requires scrutiny committees to develop 
and publish annual forward work 
programmes that identify issues and 
reports to be considered during the 
course of the municipal year. Following 
the planning session held on the 8th 
April, this report will enable the 
Committee to confirm its Forward Work 
Programme for 2016/17. 
 

Annually – 20th 
June 2016   

Leisure Services – 
Archives Update  
 

This item will provide the Committee 
with an update on recent developments 
relating to the Archive Service.   
 

20th June 2016  

Carmarthenshire’s 
approach to the 
national Licensing 
Scheme for Private 
Landlords 

The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 makes it 
a requirement that all landlords and 
agents who manage or let private sector 
homes in Wales obtain a licence. This 
report will provide the Committee with 
an update on progress in 
Carmarthenshire relating to national 
licensing of landlords and agents. 
 

20th June 2016  

Task and Finish 
Monitoring Report – 
Empty Properties  

Scrutiny committees have a key role to 
play in the monitoring of the 
implementation of recommendations to 
emerge from previous task and finish 
groups. This report will provide the 
Committee with details of progress 
against the recommendations made by 
its Task & Finish Group, following the 
review of Empty Properties during 
2014/15.  
 

20th July 2016 

Leisure Services – 
Gym Update  
 

This item will provide the Committee 
with an update on the recent 
improvement works carried out in the 
Authority’s leisure centre gyms.   
 

20th July 2016  

Community Scrutiny 
Committee Annual 
Report 2015/16   

In accordance with Article 6.2 of the 
Authority’s Constitution, each Scrutiny 
committee “must report annually to full 

Annually – 20th 
July 2016 
 

Page 111



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
Item 
 

 
Rationale  

 
Frequency / Date 

 Council on their workings and make 
recommendations for future work 
programmes taking account of 
resources available and amended 
working methods.” This report will 
provide members with an overview of 
the Committee’s work during 2015/16. 
 
 

Task and Finish 
Monitoring Report – 
Planning 
Enforcement 

The Committee has regularly monitored 
progress in relation to the 
implementation of recommendations 
from its task and finish review of 
planning enforcement procedures and 
protocols. The Committee will hold a 
joint meeting with the Planning 
Committee to consider this monitoring 
report.  
 

29th September 
2016 (Jointly with 
the Planning 
Committee)  
 

TIC Project Update  
 

The TIC Team was established to 
support a programme of 
transformational change across the 
Local Authority and to seek 
opportunities to drive out waste and 
inefficiency by delivering more 
purposeful services. This item will 
provide the Committee with an update 
on the work of the Team and examples 
of projects that it has supported in 
services that are within the Committee’s 
remit. 
 

29th September 
2016 
 

Half-Yearly 
Economic 
Development Update 

This report will provide details of 
progress made within Physical and 
Community Regeneration, Business 
Services, Regional Learning Plan, 
Marketing and Tourism as well as the 
Swansea Bay City Region. 
 

3rd November 
2016  

Planning Services 
Annual Performance 
Report 2015/16  

As part of the ‘Positive Planning’ 
consultation in December 2013, the 
Welsh Government consulted on a 
series of proposals for measuring the 
performance of key stakeholders in the 
planning service. The Planning 
Performance Framework table, which 
was adopted in November 2014, reports 
the performance of local planning 
authorities against indictors and targets 

3rd November 
2016 

Page 112



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
Item 
 

 
Rationale  

 
Frequency / Date 

set by the Welsh Government.   
 
The Authority is required to submit this 
report to the Welsh Government in 
November of each year and this item 
will provide the Committee with an 
opportunity to consider and comment on 
this report.  
 

Leisure Services 
Division Annual 
Update and Input into 
the Business Plan 
2017/18 

This report will provide details of 
progress made by and performance of 
the Leisure Division during 2016/17 
including: 
 

• Countryside Services 

• Cultural Services 

• Sports and Leisure 
 

It will also allow the Committee to 
comment on the Division’s key priorities 
and aims for 2017/18. 
 

30th March 2017 

Garage Sites  At its meeting in February 2016, the 
Committee discussed the Authority’s 
garage sites. It was agreed that a more 
detailed report be presented to the 
Committee at a future meeting.  
 

To be confirmed  

 
 
4.2 Policy Development / Policy Review 

 
Scrutiny committees can play a key role in contributing to the development of new 
policies by having early input into the shaping of a policy and providing evidence 
based proposals for the Executive Board to consider. The Committee itself may also 
request to undertake a review of a particular policy or strategy. The Committee can 
decide to undertake a review or develop a policy via a Task & Finish Group or as a 
Committee (over the course of 2-3 meetings).  
 

 
Item 
 

 
Rationale  

 
Frequency / Date 

Access to Social 
Housing Policy 

This Policy requires review as a result 
of The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 which 
places a new duty on local authorities to 
work with people who are at risk of 
losing their home within 56 days to help 
find a solution to their problems. The 
new provisions require greater joint 

29th September 
2016  

Page 113



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

working between the Government, local 
authorities and the housing industry – 
including the private rented sector and 
housing associations. 
 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
Update 

At its meeting in January 2016, County 
Council agreed to progress a 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) for 
Carmarthenshire and “authorise the 
production of a Preliminary Draft 
Charging Schedule, which would 
identify the amount of CIL sought from 
each qualifying development, and to 
conduct a formal consultation on its 
content along with the associated 
evidence base”. This report will provide 
the Committee with an update on 
progress to date.  
 

29th September 
2016  

 
 
4.3 Pre-Decision Scrutiny  

 
This section provides an opportunity for members to contribute to future decisions of 
the Executive Board and / or Council. 
 

 
Item 
 

 
Rationale  

 
Frequency / Date 

CCC Annual Report 
2015/16 and Draft 
Improvement Plan 
2016/17 

The Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 2009 requires the Authority to 
publish an annual plan of its key 
improvement objectives and an 
assessment of how it has performed in 
the previous year. This year the Welsh 
Government has allowed the Authority 
to publish them in a single report. The 
Committee will receive the elements of 
the plan and annual report that are 
relevant to its remit. 
 

Annually – 20th 
June 2016 

Revenue Budget 
Setting 2017/18 to 
2019/20 (Non-HRA)  
 

To provide members with an opportunity 
to consider and comment on the budget 
settlement, the relevant departmental 
service budgets and efficiency savings 
proposals. 
 

Annually – 5th 
December 2016  

Capital Programme 
Budget Setting 
2017/18 onwards 
(Non-HRA) 
 

To provide members with an opportunity 
to consider and comment on the draft 
five-year capital programme. 
 

Annually – 5th 
December 2016  

Page 114



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
Item 
 

 
Rationale  

 
Frequency / Date 

Communities / 
Environment 
Business Plans 
2017/18  

This report will provide members with 
detail of how the relevant Divisions 
within the Committee’s remit will provide 
their services through the setting of 
objectives, actions and targets via the 
business planning process.  
 

Annually – 5th 
December 2016  

Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) 
Revenue & Capital 
Budget 2017/18 

This report will provide members with 
an opportunity to consider and comment 
on the HRA budget and service and rent 
charges for 2017/18. 
 

Annually – 20th 
January 2017  
 

Carmarthenshire 
County Council’s 
Well-Being 
Objectives 2017/18  
 

The Well-being of Future Generations 
Act requires most public bodies in 
Wales to carry out sustainable 
development with the objective of 
improving the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of 
their area. It places a well-being duty on 
those public bodies to set and publish 
objectives designed to maximise their 
contribution to the seven national well-
being goals. They are also required to 
take all reasonable steps to meet those 
objectives. This item will provide the 
Committee with an opportunity to 
consider and comment on the Council’s 
proposed objectives for 2017/18.  
 

Annually – 20th 
January 2017  

Carmarthenshire 
Home Standards 
Plus Business Plan 
2017-20 

The Plan will explain the vision and 
detail of the Carmarthenshire Homes 
Standard Plus, and what it means for 
tenants. The Committee will have the 
opportunity to consider the CHS+ 
Business Plan, and the financial and 
delivery programme over the next three 
years, allowing submission to Welsh 
Government. 
 

Annually – 17th 
February 2017    

 
 
4.4 Investigative Scrutiny   

 
This section reflects scrutiny’s role in undertaking ‘light-touch’ or ‘in-depth’ reviews of 
particular service areas or themes. There are a number of reasons why scrutiny 
committees may want to undertake a review of this nature. These include: 
 

• Concerns about performance evidenced by previous scrutiny reports, or 
concerns expressed by members of the public about a particular issue. 

Page 115



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

• The need to explore opportunities for further development of a service offered by 
better and improved working with partners etc.  

• To assist in assessing the impact of new legislation or guidance. 
 
Investigations may be carried out via Committee meetings or through an in-depth 
review conducted by a task and finish sub-group of the Committee.  

 
 
5. Development / Briefing Sessions  

 
The Committee has indicated that it wishes to undertake a series of site visits across 
the county in relation to museums and libraries. Suggestions include:  
 

• Carmarthenshire Museum (Abergwili)  

• Parc Howard Museum (Llanelli)   

• Museum of Speed (Pendine)   

• Bro Aman Heritage Room (part of Ammanford Library)  

• Carmarthen Town Museum (part of Carmarthen Library)  

• Kidwelly Industrial Museum (run by a Trust with Local Authority support) 

• Libraries – Main libraries at Llanelli, Carmarthen and Ammanford   
  
Development sessions will be arranged for the scrutiny committees during 2016/17, 
as and when they are requested.  
 
 

6. Committee Meeting Dates 2016/17  
 

Date Venue Time 

 
Monday 20th June 2016  

 
County Hall Chamber 

 
2:00pm  

 
Wednesday 20th July 2016 

 
Spilman Street Chamber  

 
10:00am 

 
Monday 29th September 2016  
Joint meeting with the Planning 
Committee 

 
County Hall Chamber 

 
10:00am  

 
Thursday 29th September 2016 

 
County Hall Chamber 

 
10:30am 

 
Thursday 3rd November 2016 

 
Spilman Street Chamber  

 
10:00am 

 
Friday 20th January 2017  

 
Spilman Street Chamber  

 
10:00am 

 
Friday 17th February 2017 

 
County Hall Chamber 

 
10:00am  

 
Thursday 30th March 2017 

 
Spilman Street Chamber  

 
10:00am 

 
* Please note that the dates, times and venues are subject to change during the year 
  

Page 116



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
 

Community Scrutiny Committee – DRAFT Forward Work Programme 2016/17 
 

 
20 June 16 

 
20 July 16  

 
29 September 16 

 

 
03 November 16 

 

 
05 December 16 

 

 
20 January 17 

 
17 February 17 

 
30 March 17 

 
Carmarthenshire’s 
approach to the 
National Licensing 
Scheme for Private 
Landlords 
 

 
T&F Monitoring 
Report – Empty 
Properties 
 

 
T&F Monitoring – 
Planning 
Enforcement (Joint 
with Planning)  

 
Half-Yearly 
Economic 
Development 
Update 

 
Revenue Budget 
Consultation 
2016/17 -2018/19 
 

 
HRA Budget 
Service Charges 
and Rent Setting 
2017/18  

 
Carmarthenshire 
Home Standards 
Plus Business Plan 
2017 – 2020 
 

 
Leisure Services – 
End of Year 
Review 

Leisure Services – 
Archives Update  

Leisure Services – 
Gym Update 

Review of Access 
to Social Housing 
Policy (Post-
Consultation)  
 

Planning Annual 
Performance 
Report 2015/16 
 

Capital Budget 
Consultation 
2016/17 – 2020/21 
 

Council’s Well-
Being Objectives 
2017/18 

Budget Monitoring 
2016/17 

 

Draft CCC Annual 
Report 15/16 and 
Improvement Plan 
16/17 
 

EOY Performance 
Monitoring 2015/16  
 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy 

Budget Monitoring 
2016/17 

Environment / 
Communities 
Business Plans 
2017/18 

 Q3 Performance 
Monitoring 2016/17 

 

Community 
Scrutiny FWP 
2016/17 
 

EOY Budget 
Monitoring 2015/16 
 

TIC Project Update Actions & Referrals 
Update 

  Actions & Referrals 
Update 

 

 Community 
Scrutiny Annual 
Report 2015/16 
 

Q1 Performance 
Monitoring 2016/17 

     

 Actions & Referrals 
Update 
 

Budget Monitoring 
2016/17 
 

     

 P
age 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Thursday, 24 March 2016 
 

PRESENT: Councillor D.M. Cundy (Chair) 
 
Councillors:  
J.M. Charles, J.K. Howell, J. Owen, G.B. Thomas, S. Matthews, H.I. Jones, 
H.B. Shepardson, E.G. Thomas, S.M. Allen (In place of W.R.A. Davies), D.J.R. Bartlett 
(In place of T. Devichand) and B.A.L. Roberts (In place of S.L. Davies) 
 
Also present: 
Councillor L.D. Evans – Executive Board Member for Housing 
Councillor M. Gravelle – Executive Board Member for Regeneration and Leisure 
 
The following Officers were in attendance: 
I. Jones, Head of Leisure 
R. Staines, Head of Housing and Public Protection 
D. Eldred, Group Accountant 
H. Morgan, Interim Economic Development Manager 
S. Walters, Interim Economic Development Manager 
K. Thomas, Democratic Services Officer 
L. Quelch, Head of Planning 
 
Chamber,  County Hall, Carmarthen - 10.45 am - 12.15 pm 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S.L. Davies, W.R.A. 
Davies, T. Devichand and J. Thomas 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS 

 
There were no declarations of personal interests 

 
3. DECLARATION OF PROHIBITED PARTY WHIPS 

 
There were no declarations of prohibited party whips. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS (NONE RECEIVED) 
 
No public questions had been received. 
 

5. FORTHCOMING ITEMS 
 
The Committee received a list of forthcoming items to be considered at its meeting 
to be held on the 6th May, 2016. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the list of forthcoming items be received. 
  

Agenda Item 9

Page 119



 
 

 
 

6. REVENUE & CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2015/16 
 
The Committee received for consideration the Revenue and Capital Budget 
Monitoring Reports for the Housing, Regeneration, Planning and Leisure and 
Sport Services that provided an update on the latest budgetary position as at the 
31st December, 2016 in respect of the 2015/16 financial year. 
 
The following issues were raised during consideration of the report:- 
 
In response to a question on staff vacancies within the Planning Division, the Head 
of Planning confirmed that whilst the Division was short of resources, it was not 
intended that the posts would remain vacant as consideration was currently being 
given to a re-alignment of posts, with a view to staff resources being directed to 
the areas in most need.  
 
Reference was made to the dredging works to be undertaken to Burry Port 
Harbour, and an update requested thereon together with the status of the group 
known as the Friends of Burry Port Harbour.  The Head of Leisure advised that 
tender documents were currently being prepared for the major dredging works of 
the inner harbour, which were scheduled to be undertaken during the Autumn of 
2016. The annual dredge of the outer channel would be undertaken in the spring, 
as normal. With regard to the Friends of Burry Port Harbour, that was an external 
constituted group established with the aim of securing improvements to the 
harbour area, which the Council had met with on two occasions, on request.   
 
In response to a question on digitising library materials, the Head of Leisure 
advised that it related to proposals to digitise a range of materials including historic 
photographs, with the cost to be met primarily from the services’ revenue budget. 
In addition to digitisation, the division was also investing in its I.T. systems via the 
rollout of Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) technology, an automated 
scanning system enabling users to check out library books themselves. The 
Committee was also informed of recent improvements to the St Clears library 
incorporating a craft centre, a café and, potentially, the local Police Station, which 
was being considered as a co-located services model for other libraries etc within 
the county. 
 
The Head of Leisure in response to a question on Parc Howard, Llanelli, advised 
that it was proposed to undertake works to the roof externally at a cost of £240k 
from the repair and maintenance budget. Should those works exceed that 
provision, the additional cost would be met from the revenue budget. 
 
Reference was made to the number of vacancies within various services and to 
whether posts were not being filled as a means of balancing the budget and 
funding any overspend. The Head of Leisure advised that whilst there were always 
vacancies within the department, arising from the natural turnover of staff, the 
department was corporately required to continually assess its budget, with the 
management of staff being a part of that process. However, posts were not being 
kept vacant to fund any potential overspend. 
 
Reference was made to the previous monies set aside for improvements to 
Ammanford Town Centre, and clarification sought on what works had been 
undertaken to improve footfall to the town centre, apart from the pedestrianisation 
of Quay Street. The Interim Economic Development Manager (SW) advised that 

Page 120



 
 

 
 

initially, a meeting had been held with members in September 2015 to discuss 
potential projects to be undertaken within Ammanford utilising the £485k capital 
funding set aside. Subsequently, at a meeting held in January 2016, it had been 
agreed that the list of aspirational projects be reviewed. Notwithstanding that 
review, a number of projects had been undertaken, or were close to completion, 
which included a proposed housing and office development at Foundry Road, the 
deadline for the submission of interest for the development of the former Police 
Station was set for the 7th April, the library had been refurbished and £250k was to 
be spent on upgrading facilities at the leisure centre, incorporating a new fitness 
suite.  
 
In response to a question on Opportunity Street in Llanelli, the Interim Economic 
Development Manager (SW) reported that, to date, three properties in Stepney 
Street had been purchased with the assistance of grant funding from the Welsh 
Government. Planning consent was currently being sought for the development of 
those properties, including the provision of car parking for the residential element, 
with works expected to commence in the near future. With regard to the Welsh 
Government Grant, the Committee was advised that in addition to the original 
£400k grant, the Council had been awarded a further £588k for the acquisition of 
additional properties. 
 
In response to a question on the challenge to the Compulsory Purchase Order for 
the Cross Hands East Strategic Employment Site, the Interim Economic 
Development Manager (SW) confirmed that whilst negotiations were on-going, it 
was anticipated the cost of the project would not exceed the £1.1m budgetary 
provision. 
 
Reference was made to the increased £408k income received from reducing the 
amount of time council properties were void, and the Head of Housing and Public 
Protection advised that the increased income was attributable to the introduction of 
new processes by building services which, over time, had reduced the average 
void period from 80 to 20 days. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be received.  
 

7. LEISURE SERVICES ANNUAL UPDATE 
 
The Committee received for consideration the Leisure Services Annual Update 
Report for 2015/16 across its service areas of Leisure and Sport, Cultural 
Services, Countryside and Coast and the Pendine Outdoor Educational Centre set 
against the following seven outcomes: 
 
Outcome 1 – People can access opportunities to be active 
Outcome 2 – More Children and Young People are hooked on leisure / cultural 
activity for life (0-24) 
Outcome 3 – More people (25years+) are active in Leisure and Culture 
Outcome 4 People are affiliated to clubs / community groups or facilities 
Outcome 5 – People are given the skills to become physically and creatively 
literate for life 
Outcome 6 – People achieve their potential 
Outcome 7 – Our facilities and services are well managed and efficient 
 
The following issues were raised on the report:- 

Page 121



 
 

 
 

 
Reference was made to the increased income in Leisure and Sport and to whether 
that was attributable to increased charges, attendance or both. The Head of 
Leisure advised that the increase was mainly attributable to increased patronage. 
However, whilst increased charges had played a part, it should be noted that any 
increases had been set at a sensitive level and had regard to any validation of the 
division’s budget to reflect inflationary costs including pay awards and energy bills.  
 
In response to a question on the income and expenditure cost for Cultural 
Services, the Head of Leisure advised that whilst it operated a number of services 
including libraries, museums, theatres and archives the report related to the 
operation of the service as a whole, and not individual elements. He reminded the 
Committee that only certain cultural services including the theatres and the 
Laugharne Boat House levied a charge for accessing facilities. He reported that 
whilst the operational cost of the service was displaying a downward trend, the net 
cost to the Authority was nearly £3m. 
 
Reference was made to recent increases in the minimum wage and clarification 
sought on any impact that could have on the division’s operating costs, especially 
in relation to wage levels within the private sector. The Head of Leisure advised 
that as the Division had to operate within the Council’s pay policy, any increase in 
wage costs would be funded corporately and validated into its budget. With regard 
to pay levels within the private sector, although the pay gap was narrowing, the 
way the private sector operated was less bureaucratic, and the Division whilst 
adapting to change more quickly, had to ensure any changes complied with the 
Council’s Policies and Practices. 
 
Reference was made to the operation of leisure services by the private sector and 
to whether that sector viewed the Council as a competitor. The Head of Leisure 
advised that whilst that was evident to some extent, it should be noted that the 
private sector mainly operated services from which it could make a profit unlike the 
Council which provided a range of services under the Education, Social Care and 
Health and Well-Being objectives. 
 
In response to a question regarding recent Audit concerns on the operation of the 
Pembrey Country Park, the Head of Leisure confirmed that the Division was 
working with the Council’s Audit Division to ensure its operation complied with the 
Council’s processes and procedures. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report be received.  
 

8. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT UPDATE 
 
The Committee received for consideration an update report on the key activities of 
the Economic Development Division as detailed within the report. 
 
The Following issues were raised on the report: 
 
Reference was made to the ‘ARCH’ project and to whether that included the 
provision of a home for the elderly. The Committee was advised that the ARCH 
project was part of a £100m highly ambitious and significant project to provide a 
complex Wellbeing and Life Science Village on land at Delta Lakes in the context 
of the Swansea Bay City Region in conjunction with Abertawe Bro Morgannwg 

Page 122



 
 

 
 

University Health Board, the Hywel Dda Health Board, Swansea University and 
the Welsh Government which would include provision for a health and well-being 
academy, business and enterprise infrastructure, Institute of Health Science, 
Hotel/Health tourism and primary care provision. The wellness element would 
include the provision of a wellness village for retired people helping them to live 
healthier and longer lives. 
 
Reference was made to the European Regional Development Fund and European 
Social Fund programmes and information sought on whether their future delivery 
could be affected by a vote to leave the European Union in the forthcoming 
referendum. The Interim Economic Development Manager (HM) advised that 
should there be a vote to leave the union, the process could take 5 years to 
resolve. However, guarantees had been received that the above programmes 
would be secure up to 2020. 
 
Reference was made to the work being undertaken by the Tourism and Marketing 
Section on promoting Carmarthenshire and to the recently created Marketing Suite 
for the Swansea Bay City Region in the Great Hall at the New Swansea University 
Campus. It was suggested that there may be merit in the committee visiting the 
suite. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED  
 
8.1 That the report be received. 

 
8.2 That arrangements be made for the Committee to visit the 

Marketing Suite at the Swansea University Campus  
 
 

9. EXPLANATION FOR NON-SUBMISSION OF SCRUTINY REPORT 
 
The Committee noted the reasons for the non-submission of the Supporting 
People Programme Update. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the reason for the non-submission be 
noted. 
 

10. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 
ON 12TH FEBRUARY 2016 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 12th 
February, 2016 be signed as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

JOINT COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AND PLANNING 

COMMITTEE 

 

Thursday, 24 March 2016 
 

PRESENT: Councillor A.W. Jones (Chair) 
 
Councillors:  
J.M. Charles, J.K. Howell, J. Owen, G.B. Thomas, D.M. Cundy, S. Matthews, H.I. Jones, 
H.B. Shepardson, E.G. Thomas, S.M. Allen (In place of W.R.A. Davies), D.J.R. Bartlett 
(In place of T. Devichand), B.A.L. Roberts (In place of S.L. Davies), A.P. Cooper, 
I.W. Davies, J.A. Davies, T. Davies, D.C. Evans, W.T. Evans, I.J. Jackson, W.J. Lemon, 
A. Lenny, T. Theophilus, M.K. Thomas and J.S. Williams 
 
Also Present: 
Councillor M. Gravell – Executive Board Member for Regeneration and Leisure. 
 
The following Officers were in attendance: 
J. Edwards, Development Management Manager 
L. Quelch, Head of Planning 
K. Thomas, Democratic Services Officer 
 
Chamber,  County Hall, Carmarthen - 10.00  - 10.40 am 
 
1. TO APPOINT A CHAIR FOR THE MEETING 

 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that Councillor A.W. Jones be appointed Chair 
for the meeting 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S.L. Davies, W.R.A. 
Davies, T. Devichand and J. Thomas, and from Councillor T.J. Jones Executive 
Board Member for Environmental and Public Protection 

 
3. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS 

 

Councillor Minute Number Nature of Interest 

D.C. Evans Minute 6 – Community 
Scrutiny Committee 
Task and Finish Group 
Review 2013/14 – 
Action Plan Monitoring 

Member of Ammanford 
Town Council 

 
 

4. DECLARATION OF PROHIBITED PARTY WHIPS 
 
There were no declarations of prohibited party whips. 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 125



 
 

 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS (NONE RECEIVED) 
 
The Chair advised that no public questions on notice had been received 

 
6. COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TASK & FINISH GROUP REVIEW 

2013/14 - ACTION PLAN MONITORING 
 
The Committee, in accordance with minute 5.4 of its meeting held on the 14th 
September, 2015 received for consideration a progress report on the 
implementation of the Community Scrutiny Committee’s Task and Finish Review 
of Planning Enforcement. 
 
The Development Management Manager reminded the Committee that the 
purpose of the report was to provide it with an update on both the actions agreed 
as part of the Action Plan and the recommendations arising from its meeting in 
September 2015. He referred specifically to recommendation 18 on the 
establishment of the Corporate Multi-Disciplinary Enforcement Group, and 
reported that following its inaugural meeting on the 14th March, 2016 consideration 
was being afforded to the processes to be adopted for taking forward some of the 
recommendations within the action plan, which included the following:-. 
 

- examining issues arising from anti social behaviour for example, the impact of high 
hedges and how that impacted across departments 

 
- Corporate Enforcement Policy and the delegation arrangements to Officers, 

 
- Derelict Properties 

 
- The development of a protocol with Dyfed Powys Police and other agencies for the 

purposes of sharing information.  
 

The following issues/questions were raised during consideration of the report. 
 

• In response to a question on recommendation 1 relating to the provision of a 
members briefing, the Head of Planning advised that due to the introduction of 
secondary legislation by the Welsh Government on the new Planning Bill, it had 
been considered expedient to postpone the proposed December 2015 target date 
for the briefing in order to incorporate updates on the recent legislation. 
Arrangements would therefore be made for the briefing to be provided at a later 
date. 
 

• Reference was made to the enforcement of unauthorised building works and what 
action was available to the Council, other than issuing a stop notice, to secure the 
cessation of those works.  
 
The Development Management Manager advised that the first course of action 
would be to encourage a developer to cease all works on site and to apply for 
retrospective planning consent. As a Local Planning Authority, the Council, in 
addressing unauthorised development, had to adhere to planning legislation and if 
it were to issue a Stop Notice, and subsequently grant planning consent, it could 
leave itself open to a potential challenge. In all cases the issue of a Stop Notice 
was considered to be the last course of action. If, a developer were to choose to 
ignore requests to cease work, other than via a formal stop notice, the risks 
associated therewith rested solely with the developer. However, all applications, 
whether normal, or retrospective, would have to be considered on their planning 
merits.   

Page 126



 
 

 
 

 

• In response to a question on recommendation 8 on the publication of a plain 
language guide on enforcement protocol for elected members and the public, the 
Head of Planning advised that the protocol was currently being updated to reflect 
the secondary legislation issued by the Welsh Government on the 16th March on 
the new Planning Bill. Whilst the guide would primarily be available on line, paper 
copies would be made available on request. 
 

• The Head of Planning, in response to a question on recommendation 12 relating to 
the fees for processing retrospective planning applications, confirmed that the 
Welsh Government had decided not to pursue the option of doubling those fees. 
Whilst the department incurred additional cost in processing those applications, for 
which it received no recompense, she advised that as planning fees were set 
nationally by the Welsh Government the Council could not unilaterally decide to 
increase the fees it charged for retrospective planning applications. However, the 
new Planning Bill contained provision for local planning authorities to charge for 
certain types of work e.g. pre-application advice, and a report thereon would be 
submitted to Council in due course.  
 

• In response to a question relating to the recording of retrospective planning 
applications, the Head of Planning advised that the department’s current computer 
system did not differentiate between normal and retrospective applications. 
However, as a new system was to be installed in the near future she would 
examine the feasibility of incorporating a provision to identify and record 
retrospective planning applications. 
 

• Reference was made to unauthorised development and the Head of Planning 
confirmed that the Authority did take action to secure the cessation of those works, 
which included the demolition and removal of all structures. 

 
• In response to a question on recommendations 15 and 16, the Head of Planning 

confirmed that both a training regime and Health and Safety procedures were in 
place for staff undertaking site visits. Those included training for dealing with 
difficult people, undertaking risk assessments prior to a site visit and, where 
appropriate, two members of staff travelling together. 

  
• The Head of Planning in response to a question on recommendation 18 confirmed 

that, at present, the Multi Disciplinary Group was confined to the Council’s internal 
departments. Consideration of involving external partners would be the subject of 
future debate. 

 
• Reference was made to recommendation 21 regarding the Magistrates courts and 

a request made that an update thereon be made to the next meeting. 

 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that: 
6.1 The Action Plan Monitoring Report be received. 

 
6.2 The feasibility be investigated on including within the Planning 

Department’s new computer system provision for identifying 
retrospective planning applications. 
 

6.3 An update on recommendation 21 be made to the next meeting of 
the joint committee. 
 

Page 127



 
 

 
 

6.4 That the Joint Committee meet in 6 months time to monitor 
progress in implementing the recommendations of the Task and 
Finish Group. 

 
 

7. TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH 
SEPTEMBER 2015 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Joint 
Committee held on the 14th September, 2015 be received. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Page 128


	Agenda
	5 NATIONAL LICENSING OF LANDLORDS AND AGENTS
	6 DEVELOPMENT OF THE NEW CARMARTHENSHIRE ARCHIVE SERVICE (CAS)
	7 DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT (2015/16) AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN (2016/17)
	First Year Progress Report on the Corporate Strategy for 2015/16
	CCC Annual Report 2015/16 & Improvement Plan 2016/17

	8 COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2016/17
	Report

	9 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE HELD ON THE 24TH MARCH 2016
	10 TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY SCRUTINY AND PLANNING COMMITTEES, HELD ON THE 24TH MARCH 2016

